CRRA
BOARD MEETING
MARCH 24, 2011




CONNECTICUT
RESOURCES
RECOVERY
AUTHORITY

100 Constitution Plaza * Hartford » Connecticut » 06103 * Telephone (860)757-7700
: Fax (860)757-7745

MEMORANDUM

TO: CRRA Board of Directors

FROM: Moira Benacquista, Secretary to the Board/Paralegal
DATE: March 18, 2011

RE: Notice of Regular Meeting

There will be a Regular Meeting of the Connecticut Resources Recovery
Authority Board of Directors on Thursday, March 24, 2011, at 9:30 p.m. The meeting will
be held in the Board Room of 100 Constitution Plaza, Hartford, Connecticut.

Please notify this office of your attendance at (860) 757-7787 at your earliest
convenience.




1L

11

IV.

VL

Connecticut Resources Recovery Authority
Special Board of Directors Meeting

Agenda
Marcé 24,2011

9:30 AM

Pledge of Allegiance

Public Portion

A ¥, hour public portion will be held and the Board will accept written testimony and
allow individuals to speak for a limit of three minutes. The regular meeting will
commence if there is no public input.

Minutes

1. Board Action will be sought for the Approval of the Feb. 24, 2011, Special Board
Meeting Minutes (Attachment 1).

1.a Action Items

Board Committee Reports

A. Finance Committee Reports

1. Board Action will be sought Regarding Approval of the Insurance Renewals -
Property (Attachment 2).

2. Board Action will be sought Regarding Approval of the Insurance Renewals —
Public Officials and Employment Practices Liability (Attachment 3).

3. Board Action will be sought Regarding Approval of the Insurance Renewal —
Crime (Attachment 4).

4. Board Action will be sought Regarding Approval of the Insurance Renewal —
Fiduciary (Attachment 5).

5. Board Action will be sought Regarding Approval of the Wallingford Final
Distribution (Attachment 6).

B. Policies & Procurement Committee
1. Board Action will be sought Regarding Approval of the Completion of
‘Baseline Ecological Risk Assessment at the Wallingford Landfill
(Attachment 7).

Chairman and President’s Reports

Executive Session

An Executive Session will be held to discuss pending litigation, real estate acquisition,
pending RFP’s, and personnel matters with appropriate staff.




TAB 1




CONNECTICUT RESOURCES RECOVERY AUTHORITY

FOUR HUNDRED AND EIGHTY-FOURTH FEBRUARY 24, 2011

A special meeting of the Connecticut Resources Recovery Authority Board of Directors was held
on Thursday, Feb. 24, 2011, in the Board Room at CRRA Headquarters, 100 Constitution Plaza,
Hartford, Connecticut. Those present were:

Directors:

Chairman Pace

Timothy Griswold

John Harkins

Dot Kelly (present by telephone)

Theodore Martland

Nicholas Mullane

Ron Van Winkle

Steve Edwards, Bridgeport Project Ad-Hoc
Bob Painter, Mid-Connecticut Project Ad-Hoc
Steve Wawruck, Mid-Connecticut Project Ad-Hoc
Warren Howe, Wallingford Project Ad-Hoc

Present from CRRA:

Tom Kirk, President

Jim Bolduc, Chief Financial Officer

Jeffrey Duvall, Manager of Budgets and Forecasting

Peter Egan, Director of Environmental Affairs & Development
Laurie Hunt, Director of Legal Services

Paul Nonnenmacher, Director of Public Affairs

Marianne Carcio, Executive Assistant

Moira Benacquista, Board Secretary/Paralegal

Also present were: Vic Fortin, Covanta Energy; Tom Gormley, Town of Middlebury First Selectman;
John Pizzimenti of USA Hauling & Recycling; Jim Sandler, Esq., Sandler & Mara.

Chairman Pace called the meeting to order at 1:00 p.m. and said that a quorum was present.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

Chairman Pace requested that everyone stand for the Pledge of Allegiance, whereupon the
Pledge of Allegiance was recited.

PUBLIC PORTION

Chairman Pace welcomed John Harkins, Mayor of Stratford, CT, to the Board. Chairman Pace
said Director Harkins is replacing Director Lauretti, who was a vital member of the newly constituted

1




CRRA Board beginning nearly ten years ago. He said Director Lauretti put his heart and soul into this
Board and was a strong voice for CRRA and also served on the Finance Committee for many years as
well.

Chairman Pace said that the agenda allowed for a public portion in which the Board would
accept written testimony and allow individuals to speak for a limit of three minutes. As there were no
members of the public which cared to comment Chairman Pace proceeded with the agenda.

APPROVAL OF THE AMENDED MINUTES OF THE DEC 2, 2010 SPECIAL BOARD
MEETING

Chairman Pace requested a motion to approve the amended minutes of the Dec. 2, 2010, Special
Board Meeting. Director Martland made a motion to approve the minutes, which was seconded by
Director Griswold.

The motion to approve the amended minutes was approved by roll call. Chairman Pace, Director
Griswold, Director Kelly, Director Martland, Director Mullane, Director Painter, Director Wawruck,
and Director Van Winkle voted yes. Director Edwards, Director Harkins, and Director Howe abstained
as they were not present at the meeting.

Directors Aye | Nay | Abstain

Michael Pace, Chairman
Timothy Griswold

John Harkins X
Dot Kelly
Theodore Martland
Nicholas Mullane
Ron Van Winkle

x|

XXX | X

Ad-Hocs

Steve Edwards, Bridgeport X
Bob Painter, Mid-Connecticut X
Steve Wawruck, Mid-Connecticut X
Warren Howe, Wallingford X

APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF THE JAN. 27, 2011 REGULAR BOARD MEETING

Chairman Pace requested a motion to approve the minutes of the Jan. 27, 2011, Regular Board
Meeting. Director Martland made a motion to approve the minutes, which was seconded by Director
Griswold.

The motion to approve the minutes was approved by roll call. Chairman Pace, Director Edwards,
Griswold, Director Kelly, Director Martland, Director Mullane, Director Painter, Director Wawruck,
and Director Van Winkle voted yes. Director Harkins, Director Howe, and Director Mullane abstained
as they were not present at the meeting.

i




Directors Aye | Nay | Abstain
Michael Pace, Chairman X

Timothy Griswold X

John Harkins X
Dot Kelly X

Theodore Martland X

Nicholas Mullane X
Ron Van Winkle X

Ad-Hocs

Steve Edwards, Bridgeport X

Bob Painter, Mid-Connecticut X

Steve Wawruck, Mid-Connecticut X

Warren Howe, Wallingford X

RESOLUTION REGARDING APPROVAL OF THE MID-CONN RECYCLING REBATE

REVIEW

Chairman Pace requested a motion regarding the above-captioned matter. The following motion

was made by Director Van Winkle:

WHEREAS, the Authority has encouraged member municipalities to recycle to the maximum
extent possible by not charging a tipping fee for the acceptance of recyclables at the Authority’s
regional recycling facilities since commencing operations; and

WHEREAS, the Authority spent $3 million to install single stream sorting equipment at its Mid-
Connecticut Project Regional Recycling Center with the expectation that single-stream recycling
would increase recycling in its participating cities and towns and spent an additional $60,000
retrofitting the equipment to accept all household plastic containers; and

WHEREAS, Mid-Connecticut Project cities and towns delivered more than 83,00 tons of
recyclables in FY 201; and

WHEREAS, while recycling tonnages decreased from year to year in the remainder of the state,
the Mid-Connecticut Project regional recycling center processed approximately 84,00 tons of
recyclables in FY 2010 an increase of about 3.5%; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors adopted the FY 2010 Mid-Connecticut Budget anticipating
that a per-ton rebate provision for member municipalities based on the amount of acceptable
recyclable tons annually delivered would not be possible; and

WHEREAS, the Mid-Connecticut Project Regional Recycling Center operations generated
sufficient revenues in excess of expenses to rebate $5.00 per ton delivered by the municipalities;
and




WHEREAS, the Authority has accrued sufficient funds for a rebate and the Fiscal Year 2010
audit has been performed and the auditors have confirmed that the funds are accrued and
available;

NOW THEREFORE, be it

RESOLVED: That the Board of Directors approves the use of approximately $420,000.00 to
provide a $5.00-per-ton rebate to the municipalities based on their pro-rate share of acceptable
recycling tonnage delivered to the Mid-Connecticut Regional Recycling Center system.

Director Martland seconded the motion.

Director Van Winkle said this resolution details a rebate for recycling which CRRA has provided
for the past three years. He said the concept of the rebate is to provide incentive to the communities to
remove their recycling from the waste stream and save $69.00 a ton as there is no charge for recyclables.
Director Van Winkle said this $5.00 a ton rebate provides an additional incentive to recycle more.

Mr. Kirk said after reviewing the fiscal year budget, management determined that a tipping fee
for recyclables would not be recommended, and that there were sufficient funds to pay out this rebate.

Mr. Kirk said CRRA is pleased to share the modest profit from recycling. Chairman Pace noted
CRRA has never charged for recycling and a rebate is provided above the cost of operations for
providing this service.

Chairman Pace said the rebates checks will be ready at the CRRA annual meeting on March 2,
2011.

The motion previously made and seconded was approved unanimously by roll call. Chairman
Pace, Director Griswold, Director Harkins, Director Kelly, Director Martland, Director Mullane,
Director Painter, Director Wawruck, and Director Van Winkle voted yes. Director Edwards and Director
Howe abstained.

>
<
o

Directors Nay | Abstain

Michael Pace, Chairman
Timothy Griswoid

John Harkins

Dot Kelly

Theodore Martland
Nicholas Mullane

Ron Van Winkle

XXX |X|X|X|X

Ad-Hocs

Steve Edwards, Bridgeport X
Bob Painter, Mid-Connecticut X
Steve Wawruck, Mid-Connecticut X
Warren Howe, Wallingford X




RESOLUTION REGARDING APPROVAL OF THE MDC MID-CONN OPERATING BUDGET

Chairman Pace requested a motion regarding the above-captioned matter. The following motion
was made by Director Martland:

WHEREAS, The Metropolitan District Commission (MDC) prepared an operating budget for
the Mid-Connecticut Project (the MDCMC Proposed Budget) for the period July thru December
2011 and submitted such operating budget to the Authority for review on January 31, 2011; and

WHEREAS, The Authority reviewed the MDCMC Proposed Budget and scheduled a meeting
on February 3, 2011 with the MDC to seek clarification on certain items included in the
MDCMC Proposed Budget; and '

WHEREAS, upon its review, the Authority determined that the MDCMC Proposed Budget for
the Administration reflected a significant increase in contribution to Pension Regular. The
budget also included approximately $31.6 million for a line item entitled “MDC Contract
Separation Costs”, for costs purported to be incurred following the expiration of the CRRA-
MDC Agreement on December 30, 2011. The Authority recommends the revision of the
MDCMC Proposed Budget for the Administration by a reduction in contribution to Pension
Regular and the elimination of “MDC Contract Separation Costs”; and

WHEREAS, upon its review, the Authority determined that the MDCMC Proposed Budget for
the Waste Processing Facility (WPF) reflected a significant increase in contribution to Pension
Regular. The Authority recommends the revision of the MDCMC Proposed Budget for the WPF
by a reduction in contribution to Pension Regular; and

NOW, THEREFORE, it is

RESOLVED: That the Board hereby adopts the fiscal year 2012 Mid-Connecticut Operating
Budget for the period July 1, 2011 thru December 30, 2011 as submitted by the MDC and
revised by the Authority in the form presented at this meeting.

Director Griswold seconded the motion.

Director Van Winkle said this resolution was passed by the Finance Committee. Mr. Kirk said
MDC’s contract reimburses most of their actual costs under a complicated arrangement written up and
detailed in the contract. Mr. Kirk said the Board is not necessarily accepting the assumptions which were
provided in MDC’s contract but are acknowledging they did meet their requirements from CRRA in
providing that budget. He said it is important to note that this is a stub budget as it is only six months out
of the fiscal year and the contract expires in Dec. 2011 at which point NAES Incorporated will operate
the facility. Mr. Kirk said the fiscal year impact of this project will be split between MDC and NAES,
and the two numbers together will determine the operating costs of the facility for the entire fiscal year.

Director Van Winkle noted that MDC proposed a budget of $48 million and CRRA is
recommending a budget of $8.8 million. Chairman Pace said that if CRRA adopted the MDC proposed
budget, the Mid-CT tip fee would have been $131 per ton. Mr. Kirk said the major issue in the widely

' 5




disparate numbers is the subject of a legal arbitration between MDC and CRRA over the costs
associated with the expiration of the contract. He said there are costs alleged at the end of the project,
and the liability for those costs and the ownership of those costs will be determined in the arbitration
process which is currently underway. Chairman Pace said the dispute is additionally over whether or not
the costs associated, implied and defined here are truly correct.

Director Painter asked for clarification on the vote. Chairman Pace explained the Board is voting
on the recommended budget which CRRA is proposing back to MDC which takes out those costs which
are not appropriate. He said otherwise there would be a $131 processing fee to all of the towns for an
issue which has yet to be legally settled. Director Painter said when the conversation was first initiated
something to the effect of “we were voting on that MDC had fulfilled their obligations” was stated.
Chairman Pace clarified that Mr. Kirk stated “MDC had fulfilled their obligations in presenting a
budget”. He said that doesn’t mean CRRA has accepted that budget, it means MDC presented their
budget within the required time frame which CRRA management then reviews and analyzes. Chairman
Pace said the budget is often modified.

Director Kelly asked if management could explain why the word “recommends” is used in the
resolution where it states, “the Authority recommends the revision of the MDCMC Proposed Budget for
the Administration by a reduction in contribution to the pension regular and the elimination of MDC
contract separation costs”. Chairman Pace responded that management is recommending this budget to
the Board. Mr. Kirk said the Authority in terms of this “whereas” refers to management recommending
to the Board passage of this resolution.

Director Martland asked for assurance that the member towns understand the difference in the tip
fee if CRRA was to accept MDC’s budget without challenging those two items versus its acceptance as
it was presented from MDC to the full Board.

Mr. Bolduc said there is nothing different in this process from years prior. He said the amount of
money claimed for these expiration costs increases each year. Mr. Bolduc said at one point in time it was
$11 million, then $17 million, then $20 million plus, and the last year when this budget was proposed it
was $32 million and this year it is $39 million. He said the number is growing fairly rapidly and is taken
out by CRRA as it concerns the arbitration. Mr. Bolduc said it concerns primarily unfunded liabilities
which are being claimed for both retirees’ pension and the other past employee benefits.

Mr. Bolduc said he would like to make it clear that CRRA is not reserving for MDC’s
“expiration costs”. He said there is no cash account and CRRA is not setting aside funds. Mr. Bolduc
said he has had a number of discussions with CRRA’s outside auditors and has also shown them the
language and they have not required that CRRA set up either an accrual or fund any liability.

Chairman Pace said that page four contains a very simple break down of the numbers from MDC
and CRRA and the delta in between the two numbers.

The motion previously made and seconded was approved unanimously by roll call. Chairman
Pace, Director Griswold, Director Harkins, Director Kelly, Director Martland, Director Mullane,
Director Painter, Director Wawruck, and Director Van Winkle voted yes. Director Edwards and Director
Howe abstained. ‘




>
h
o

Directors Nay | Abstain

Michael Pace, Chairman
Timothy Griswold

John Harkins

Dot Kelly

Theodore Martland
Nicholas Mullane

Ron Van Winkle

DK XKD [ X | X X

Ad-Hocs

Steve Edwards, Bridgeport X
Bob Painter, Mid-Connecticut X
Steve Wawruck, Mid-Connecticut X
Warren Howe, Wallingford : X

RESOLUTION REGARDING APPROVAL OF THE MID-CONN BUDGET

Chairman Pace requested a motion regarding the above-captioned matter. The following motion
was made by Director Martland:

WHEREAS, the Connecticut Resources Recovery Authority (the “Authority”) is required by the
Municipal Service Agreement (the “MSA”) with the Mid-Connecticut project towns to submit
the next succeeding fiscal year budget on a timely basis (i.e., 120 days before the beginning of
the next fiscal year); and

WHEREAS, the Mid-Connecticut Project’s Fiscal Year 2012 will be the last twelve month
fiscal year and the associated debt will be retired on November 15, 2012; and

WHEREAS, the Authority has prudently'established necessary reserves to fund its liabilities
including debt payment, landfill post closure activities, and risk mitigation; and

WHEREAS, the Authority has determined that based on the current spread between market
interest rates and consumer price index rates, an additional contribution to the Hartford Landfill
Post Closure Reserve is necessary to ensure that all landfill post closure liabilities are funded;
and

WHEREAS, the Authority received $5,000,000 in fiscal year 2011 from the State Bond
Commission for reimbursement of closure activities of its Hartford Landfill; and

WHEREAS, similar to other Authority Project expirations, the Authority has identified the need
to establish an end-of-Project reserves; and

WHEREAS, the final payment on Project bonds will be made on November 15,2012, and funds
now held by the bond trustee will thereupon become available for use by the Authority: and




WHEREAS, the Authority proposes a reserve be established to foster recycling, education, and
solid waste reduction initiatives to support the Connecticut Department of Environmental
Protection’s (the “CTDEP”) Solid Waste Management Plan; and

WHEREAS, the Authority’s Operating Agreements for the Mid-Connecticut Waste Processing
Facility (the “WPF”), Power Block Facility (the “PBF”), and the Energy Generating Facility (the
“EGF”), which will expire in fiscal year 2012, were competitively bid resulting in the selection
of a new operator, and the associated annual savings and transition expenses for this operator are
incorporated in the Fiscal Year 2012 proposed budget;

NOW THEREFORE, it is

RESOLVED: that the proposed Fiscal Year 2012 Mid-Connecticut Project operating budget be
adopted in the form presented and discussed at this meeting; and

FURTHER RESOLVED: that the following tip fees be adopted for the Fiscal Year 2012
operating budget; and

WASTE STREAM TIP FEES
Municipal Solid Waste (per ton) $69.00
Spot Waste (per ton) Market Rate
Municipal Bulky Waste (per ton) $85.00
Ferrous Residue (per ton) Market Rate
DEP Certified Soils /Cover Material (per ton) Market Rate
Mattress / Box Spring Surcharge (per unit) $30.00
Recycling; Single or Dual Stream (per ton) $0.00

FURTHER RESOLVED: that the President is hereby authorized to approve the use of funds
from the Facility Modification Fund, Rolling Stock Fund, and the Jets/EGF Fund to pay for costs
and fees incurred during Fiscal Year 2012 in accordance with the operating and capital budgets
adopted pursuant hereto, as presented and discussed at this meeting, provided that all purchases
of goods and services shall comply with the requirements of the Authority’s Procurement
Policies and Procedures; and

FURTHER RESOLVED: that a Recycling, Education, and Solid Waste Initiatives Fund (the
“RESWTI”) in the amount of $500,000 be established at the Short Term Investment Fund of the
State of Connecticut (“STIF”) to fund solid waste reduction activities in'support of the CTDEP
Solid Waste Management Plan; and

FURTHER RESOLVED: that in accordance with other Authority project expirations, a Post
Project Closure Reserve in the amount of $750,000 be established in a STIF account for project-
related expenses that may occur after the Project has ended; and




FURTHER RESOLVED: that a Litigation Reserve in the amount of $1,950,000 be established
in a STIF account, and $694,000 be transferred from the Hartford Landfill Closure Reserve to
the Litigation Reserve; and

FURTHER RESOLVED: that $2,676,000 from the Hartford Landfill Closure Reserve be
transferred to the Facility Modification Reserve to defray the impact on fiscal year 2012 tip fees,
and

FURTHER RESOLVED: that $1,600,000 be transferred from the Hartford Landfill Closure
Reserve to the Hartford Landfill Post Closure Reserve, and

FURTHER RESOLVED: that $1,800,000 be transferred from the Risk Fund to the Revenue
Fund to defray the impact on fiscal year 2012 tip fees; and

FURTHER RESOLVED: that a Transition Fund in the amount of $3,670,000 be established in
a STIF account to support the expenses associated with the transition from the two current
operators to one operator; and

FURTHER RESOLVED: that $3,000,000 be transferred from the Hartford Landfill Post
Closure Reserve to the Facility Modification Reserve to defray the impact on the Fiscal Year
2012 tip fees and be replaced with $3,000,000 in fiscal year 2013 from the Renewal &
Replacement Fund and the Operating & Maintenance Fund held by the Trustee once these
reserves become available in November 2012.

Director Griswold seconded the motion.

Mr. Kirk said this resolution provides for the budget and tip fee of the Mid-Connecticut project.
He said the end of project costs is detailed and there will be a stub period of costs in FY’13, however
these details should be a pre-cursor of that five month period. Mr. Kirk said CRRA is pleased to offer a
$69.00 per ton tip fee.

Mr. Kirk said it may appear that there is a slight increase in capital spending this year however; it
was four/five years after the Enron recovery began in earnest before CRRA was able to start addressing
many long postponed maintenance and repairs on the EGF, WPF and PBF facility. He said the WPF was
addressed first and the repairs on the PBF and EGF facility are now being accomplished. Mr. Kirk said
these repairs are industry recommended and industry standard repair decisions in recognition of an aged
plant which requires investments to be accomplished in an orderly and planned manner.

Mr. Kirk said that management is taking advantage of anticipated increases of kilowatts per ton
and availability and capacity use of the facility. He said management is banking and planning on the
money which is being spent on capital items reflecting increases and productivity in effectiveness of the
basic measurements. He said these measurements are kilowatts per ton increasing and the availability of
the units increasing. '

Mr. Kirk said management is anticipating the completion of baling tests and assuming they go as
planned, will proceed with a baling initiative that will allow CRRA to shave the peaking edge of the

9




waste supply curve to save about $1.00 a ton in future years. Mr. Kirk said the baling initiative has been
placed into the budget in anticipation of favorable test results. Director Van Winkle said the baling
process wraps excess trash in plastic to be stored for burning during usage in slow months. Mr. Kirk said
that garbage is a cyclical business and more garbage is received in the summer. He explained the baling
would allow for excess garbage to be wrapped and stored for usage in slow winter months.

Mr. Bolduc commenced a review of the resolutions with the Board. He said in response to
Director Kelly’s questions concerning NAES Incorporated, two major contracts are expiring at the
facility. Mr. Bolduc said one part concerns the WPF contract which is the waste processing side, which
is the MDC contract which expires in December of this year so effectively MDC will operate the facility
for six months of the year and then the new operator, NAES will operate it for the next six months.

Mr. Bolduc said the table shows MDC’s operation for the first six months is for $8,844,150. He
said the last tab shows the MDC budget that was adopted. He said the other contract which expires is the
Covanta contract. Mr. Bolduc said Covanta operates the PBF (power block facility) and the EGF facility
and will operate the plant for 11 months at an estimated cost of $16 million with NAES operating the
plant for one month.

Mr. Bolduc said under expenditure detail there is a line for project transition costs for
$3,670,000. He said in order to effectuate the transition from two operators to one there are a number of
things that need to happen. He said on the WPF side CRRA owns and operates the inventory and when
the transition occurs CRRA will still own those things. He said on the Covanta side that was not the case
and CRRA has a limited amount of spare parts with Covanta carrying the inventory on their balance
sheet. Mr. Bolduc explained CRRA will need those spare parts from Covanta and will either need to
purchase them from Covanta or replace them at an estimated $750,000 as part of the one-time transition
costs.

Mr. Bolduc said there is an additional $750,000 for critical spare parts inventory including items
which would be required in an emergency or have a long lead time as the plant runs twenty four hours a
day and cannot go out of operation. He said out of that roughly $3.6 million there is about $1.5 million
of expenditures related to parts. Mr. Bolduc said the other $2 million is for transitioning costs such as
hiring, computer systems, software, manuals, etc. which are one-time costs. He said the WPF side
FY’11 adopted budget shows approximately $17.1 million in costs and this year the split costs are about
$16.2 million in costs with a total of $.9 million in savings. Mr. Bolduc said the $2 million in transition
costs not related to inventory is a pay back of almost a year as the aforementioned savings and for six
months. He said in addition the savings will expand with the new operator on the PBF/EGF.

Chairman Pace asked if management is comfortable with the inventory that CRRA is keeping as
he recalls past auditors having concerns. Mr. Bolduc said that issue has been resolved and an audit is
still being done. Director Martland said it was his understanding that the inventory and equipment is
CRRA’s as they paid for it. Mr. Bolduc said that 1s mostly correct with exception of the PBF side as
there were parts that Covanta purchased over the years.

Director Kelly asked if management is expecting to see an environmental control requirement in
the next fiscal year related to controlling the jet emissions or further control on the stack emission on the
waste to energy bumer. Mr. Egan said the answer is no as there are no anticipated capital expenditures
associated with any pollution control equipment at the waste to energy plant. He said management does
not plan to spend any money in the next fiscal year for any control technology on the jet peaking units.

10




Mr. Egan said there are no rules, regulations or trading orders which suggest that spending would be
needed or required.

Director Kelly asked if the jets are totally subsumed within the EGF. Mr. Bolduc said in response
to her question on the PBF EGF that is still only Covanta. He said the jets operator is another company
called NGS which continues until the end of the fiscal year.

Mr. Bolduc reviewed the individual “whereas” with the Board. He said much of what happening
occurred similarly when CRRA was reaching the expiration of the Bridgeport and Wallingford
contracts. Mr. Bolduc said reserves, assets and liabilities are reviewed and taken into consideration.

Mr. Bolduc said the first resolve reflects this effort in its entirety with the further resolve asking
the Board to adopt the tip fees and rates. He said a $69.00 tip fee is proposed, spot waste will be a
function of the market to keep the plant running as full as possible, bulky waste is $85.00, the ferrous
residue is a market costs and is CT DEP regulated and those rates will be brought to the Board for
approval. Mr. Bolduc said the mattress and box spring are a $30.00 a unit cost. He said a zero dollar
recycling tip fee is projected and management hopes the market price will allow for a rebate again.

Mr. Bolduc said the next further resolve provides authority for management to move money into
various capital expenditure funds and to make withdrawals. Chairman Pace added that these costs are for
planned capital expenditures.

Mr. Bolduc said the next resolve details funding for management to use for initiatives under the
Solid Waste Management Act, such as recycling education and solid waste initiatives. He explained
such initiatives would be brought to the Board first for approval before being undertaken.

Mr. Bolduc said the next resolve, similar to Wallingford and Bridgeport, details necessary
closure activities such as an audit to bring the project to fruition. He said this resolve establishes a
reserve for executing those activities which is accomplished according to a punch list and any funds not
used to complete these activities would be returned to the towns.

Mr. Bolduc said the next resolve details the establishment of a reserve for potential litigation of
$1,950,000. He said unused funds will also be returned to the member towns. He said an additional
$694,000 is being moved into this account from the Hartford Landfill Closure Reserve due to an issue
related to the City of Hartford.

Mr. Bolduc said the next resolve details the transfer of $2,676,000 from the Hartford Landfill
Closure Reserve to the Facility Modification Reserve as there was extra money in the Closure reserve.
He explained the extra money from the bonding commission will be used to defray costs in FY’12 and
negate the impact on the tip fee.

Mr. Bolduc said the next resolve details the transfer of $1,600,000 from the Hartford Landfill
Closure Reserve to the Hartford Landfill Post Closure Reserve to fully fund the Post Closure Reserve.

Mr. Bolduc said the next resolve details transferring $1,800,000 of excess funds from the risk

fund to the revenue fund to defray the impact on the FY"12 tip fee. He said in the future, any unused
funds would flow back to the towns. '

11




Mr. Bolduc said the next resolve details the establishment of a $3,670,000 transition fund to be
established in a STIF account to support expenses associated with transition costs.

Mr. Bolduc said under the original bond indenture $3 million was placed in two accounts
specifically for maintaining and operating that facility, a facility operating maintenance reserve and the
facility renewal and replacement reserve. He said when the bonds were issued the bond holders wanted
to be sure that the plant was maintained as their ability to be paid funds was dependent on the plant’s
performance. Mr. Bolduc said this allowed for the trustee to step in and make any necessary repairs. He
said over the years the account has not needed to be touched and is required to remain with the trustee
until Nov. 16, 2012.

Director Painter asked if CRRA employees a lobbyist. Chairman Pace replied no. Mr. Kirk said
CRRA is permitted to use a government liaison employee; however that gentleman recently left to
pursue employment with the CT DMV.

Director Painter said he saw the line item and was wondering if a government liaison is a
cuphemism for lobbyist. Chairman Pace replied it is not. Mr. Kirk said the bulk of the legislative
education work has been picked up by Mr. Nonnenmacher. Chairman Pace said a legislator has to make
good public policy and CRRA provides them with the information to do so.

Director Van Winkle said there is often discussion that CRRA spends money on lobbyists at the
legislature when in fact it is not true.

The motion previously made and seconded was approved unanimously by roll call. Chairman
Pace, Director Griswold, Director Harkins, Director Kelly, Director Martland, Director Mullane,
Director Painter, Director Wawruck, and Director Van Winkle voted yes. Director Edwards and Director
Howe abstained.

Directors Aye | Nay | Abstain

Michael Pace, Chairman
Timothy Griswold

John Harkins

Dot Kelly

Theodore Martland
Nicholas Mullane

Ron Van Winkle

XXX XXX |X

Ad-Hocs

Steve Edwards, Bridgeport X
Bob Painter, Mid-Connecticut X
Steve Wawruck, Mid-Connecticut X
Warren Howe, Wallingford X

PRESIDENT’S REPORT

Mr. Kirk said CRRA no longer has an employee serving as a government liaison. He said
management is monitoring several proposed bills, several of which are placeholders for the CRRA

12




Board governance issue which will be discussed shortly. Mr. Kirk said a number of the bills address
potential taxes on solid waste activities very critical to CRRA. He said if they are written incorrectly and
gain traction that may have a significant impact on tipping fees in the future.

Mr. Kirk said CRRA management is meeting with Town Selectman and other legislative groups
at the town level to address questions pertaining to the Mid-Conn expiration and the new CRRA system
contract. He said the response so far has been very good and there are several towns that wish to sign up.
Director Edwards asked if management is trying to sign up MSA’s to transfer the old contract to the new
contract.

Mr. Kirk replied that this is not an extension of the old contract but a replacement of the old
contract. He said there are many different terms and conditions, such as no full faith and credit if they
choose, and no put or pay in an effort to improve the service as this is no longer a project. Mr. Kirk said
the waste doesn’t have to go to this facility through that transfer station. He said the transfer stations
belong to CRRA. Mr. Kirk said the towns can go wherever they would like with their garbage.

Director Edwards asked if the towns will be signing up with CRRA with set terms. Mr. Kirk
replied terms vary from a spot contract, a short 5 year term, or a long term 15 year term. He said tonnage
is still depressed due to the economy and weather issues. He said recycling is flat for this month.

Mr. Kirk said the Mid-Conn outage continues and the extension is related to the turbine erosion
issues identified and planned for in the line boring fix. He said the repair was finished successfully. Mr.
Kirk said the parts are being reconnected and will be back on the modified schedule shortly.

Mr. Kirk said management is planning for the transition to the new operations scenario. He said a
busy year for preparing the plant and new employees is expected and management’s goal is for a
seamless transition for its customers.

Director Painter asked for information on the NAES benefit package. Mr. Kirk said he has a
write-up from NAES which was analyzed by CRRA’s benefit consultant and will also provide an oral
summary. He said the NAES benefits’ package provided to its employees is typical of a private sector
power plant facility. Mr. Kirk said the major difference with the public sector operator currently at the
plant is a defined contribution plan, which is a 401k plan with a 9% contribution, 6% from the company
and an optional 3% company match.

Mr. Kirk said the medical plan is very typical and is similar to Covanta’s current offering. He
said a full comparison of the full medical, dental and optical plan to CRRA’s plan shows minor
differences however, in total the compensation package was reasonably reflective of the CRRA,
Covanta, and management’s expectation for a typical market plan. Mr. Kirk said the major difference for
a WPF employee is a change from a defined benefit plan to defined contribution and there would be no
significant difference for Covanta employees at the WPF.

Mr. Kirk said Covanta employees who have previously worked for NEAS are reportedly looking
forward to doing so again. He said they noted the internal bonus plans offered by NAES is very
generous and reflective of merit and performance. Mr. Bolduc said the analysis Mr. Kirk is referring to
was conducted by CRRA’s outside broker R.C. Knox.

13




DISCUSSION REGARDING THE MID-CONNECTICUT PROJECT MUNICIPAL ADVISORY
COMMITTEE PROPOSED RESOLUTION

Chairman Pace said the First Selectman from Middlebury, Tom Gormley, is here representing
the Mid-Connecticut Project Municipal Advisory Committee (hereinafter referred to as “the MAC
Committee”). He said Mr. Gormley is bringing a document prepared by the MAC Committee to the
table.

Director Griswold said the MAC Committee meets to encourage the participation of local
communities and engage in a dialogue between the CRRA Board and the seventy Mid-Connecticut
member towns. He said after several changes the MAC Committee meets on a quarterly basis for
updates from Mr. Kirk and to hold discussions with management and one another.

Director Griswold said there has been discussion lately concerning the make-up and governance
of the CRRA Board. He said there was an additional sub-Committee formed by the MAC Committee
called the Mid-Connecticut Project Municipal Advisory Committee Governance Committee (hereinafter
referred to as the MAC Governance Committee”) whose charge is to consider options for changing
governance of the CRRA Board and to bring those results to the CRRA Board.

Mr. Gormley said the MAC Governance Committee has met three times followed by a meeting
in which the MAC Governance Committee came up with a recommendation for the CRRA Board.
Director Griswold said the outcome of the MAC Governance Committee was to put together the
resolution which is contained in the CRRA Board package.

Mr. Gormley said when the MAC Governance Committee began it was more antagonistic than it
currently is. He said one of the members left and the Committee has become more orderly. Mr. Gormley
said he is happy with the change as he was somewhat concerned by the comments at one meeting where
the MAC Governance Committee seemed to be intent on replacing the current CRRA Board and taking
over without the necessary technical knowledge of capital equipment.

Mr. Gormley said he believes many of the member towns do not feel that they have adequate
representation on the CRRA Board. He said he became a member of the MAC Committee as
representation for the thirteen Naugatuck Valley towns. Mr. Gormley said he and Don Stein, the First
Selectman of Barkhamsted are the co-chairs of the MAC Committee. He said the consensus of the
group was to propose a simple resolution to the CRRA Board concerning their make-up.

Mr. Gormley said the MAC Governance Committee is seeking the support of the CRRA Board
because, as many of the municipal officials at the table know, often when legislation is submitted
through CCM or COST you wind up the next year in the same place because it is difficult to get
approval from the legislature. Mr. Gormley said the group wanted to come up with a proposal where
their representation for their specific towns or group would be more meaningful. He said the MAC
Governance Committee felt the last step was to bring the resolution to the CRRA Board as they felt the
support of the Board would be better before approaching the legislature.

Chairman Pace referred to the resolution in the package. He made several suggestions and
comments on the specific talking points contained in the resolution. He said the CRRA Board was
reconstituted in 2003 and obviously according to the proposed MAC Committee resolution some towns
may not be satisfied with the Board’s make-up. Chairman Pace asked Mr. Gormley specifically what the

14




MAC Governance Committee is not satisfied with in terms of the CRRA Board’s make-up. He said he
would like a report detailing what the towns believe the problem is. Chairman Pace said if the CRRA
Board is to recommend changes to the Legislature, which he is not opposed to, he needs to know what
specifically they are looking to resolve.

Chairman Pace said he is hoping for a report detailing a summary of the discussions held by the
MAC Governance Committee and what the consensus was, specifically what the MAC Governance
Committee sees as the problem with the current Board and what needs to be fixed. He said he has been
working for ten years as a volunteer. Chairman Pace said what he initially signed on to do, bring the
company back from disaster, has been accomplished and he welcomes a review of the Board
composition.

Chairman Pace suggested the MAC Governance Committee take a look at what is good about the
current Board. He said their recommendation to add more people to the Board has some good and bad
points. Chairman Pace said the old CRRA Board was appointed in a manner similar to the second bullet
contained in the recommended resolution from the MAC Governance Committee. He said the legislature
in its wisdom objected to that set up and individual legislative leaders appointed members giving the
legislature ownership which he believes is important as CRRA is a public entity.

Chairman Pace inquired regarding the suggestions contained in the resolution. He asked why
Hartford would automatically get a seat on the Board when there are other towns that host CRRA
facilities such as Waterbury, Preston, and Shelton. Director Painter said the discussion at the Committee
level suggested Hartford should have representation on the CRRA Board because they are a host
community. Director Wawruck said that Hartford receives a host community payment from CRRA in
lieu of taxes. Chairman Pace agreed. He said Hartford also receives a substantial amount of money for
recycling and education. Chairman Pace said that host communities should be treated equitably.

Chairman Pace said one of the recommendations in this resolution states if a Board member is no
longer a municipal official he or she steps down. He urged the Committee to consider if there are ten
members on the CRRA Board which are municipal officials and if they do not get re-elected there may
be a whole new Board. He said what made the CRRA Board so strong and flexible was the remarkable
consistency of members who stayed the course, and learned the business. Chairman Pace said there were
times when the agenda and Board package required almost eight hours of meeting time to get through.

Chatrman Pace said the MAC Governance Committee has to be concerned about the
geographical spread. He said the CRRA Board should not be loaded with a certain geographical areas as
CRRA serves the entire State. He said good representation across the State helps.

Chairman Pace said the MAC Governance Committee’s suggestions for Chief Elected Officials
are in line with the current Board; however there is no mention of experts from specific fields, a crucial
component of the current Board. He said there have been experts from the energy, environmental and
finance fields. Chairman Pace said those experts helped with understanding the mechanics of the CRRA
business. He said not every elected official will have that expertise which is important for the Board in
order to serve the towns and the State. Chairman Pace urged the MAC Governance Committee to
consider that level of expertise in their recommendation. r

15




Chairman Pace said there are currently ad-hocs on the CRRA Board which represent different
geographical areas. He said making those ad-hocs Directors may be another way of accomplishing the
Committee’s goal.

Chairman Pace said a change to the current CRRA Board at this time may be difficult as CRRA
is in the middle of a major shift in business models. He said he would be happy to work with the MAC
Governance Committee on these proposals in order to prepare this report.

Director Van Winkle said being on the CRRA Board is a lot of work. He said he spends hours
looking at this material, material which is important to have an understanding and knowledge of these
documents. Director Van Winkle said the information is often outside the realm of his expertise and he
relies on experts from their respective fields from each industry in order to ask the questions which
clarify that information when needed. He said there is real value in having expertise as well as local
representation. Director Van Winkle urged those representatives that want to be on the CRRA Board to
be aware of how much work it really is, in particular the Chairman position.

Director Mullane said he has been on the CRRA Board for about a year and half, and has been
the First Selectman of North Stonington for 25 years. He said he has closed a landfill in his town and
was for five years the certified DEP transfer station landfill operator and also serves as his Towns’
representative to the Southeast Resource Recovery Authority. Director Mullane said as a First Selectman
he makes business decisions through a political process. He said decisions from the CRRA Board are
business decisions through a corporation and have nothing to do with political preferences or the
political process.

Director Mullane said CRRA is run as a corporation and between environmental, financial,
management and administration is nothing but work. He said that he commits one and half days a month
at a minimum in the actual meetings and sub-committee action, reviewing the material, doing research
and attending meetings. Director Mullane said this is outside of the political process and political
process has no place in this corporation. He said the corporation is to be run in a cost effective manner to
achieve its charter and goal and its statutory requirements. Director Mullane said it is very helpful to him
to understand how the Southeastern region and his town will be affected. He thanked management and
the CRRA Board for their work on a well-oiled corporation.

Director Griswold said a Board made up by people who pay the bills and derive the benefits may
create a conflict of interest because one may be motivated to make decision that would benefit your
town versus the entire corporation. He said a Board of all municipal people would not only cut out
experts from the various fields the Board members it would all be homogenous and the outlook may be
trying to keep tip fees artificially low when it may not be the right thing to do for CRRA.

Director Kelly said she was recently appointed to the CRRA Board in May of the prior year and
was prior the Director of Energy and Environmental Services for a major chemical company. She said
she has had incinerator, landfill super fund sites, alternative energy, and waste to energy application
experience. Director Kelly commented on the suggestion that the MAC Governance Committee made
for all municipal officials to be placed on the Board. She said this is complicated material and the
regulatory and business aspects require extensive knowledge. E

Director Kelly said she believes there is a tremendous value to the State of Connecticut to offer
all the communities this kind of expertise. She said CRRA should be a resource and educational center

16




of knowledge to help all of the member towns and communities. Director Kelly volunteered her services
to be part of a meeting with the MAC Governance Committee to provide more insight into the
complexity and work that it takes to review the Board material.

Director Wawruck said when he came into office as a new First Selectman there were unresolved
lawsuits from New Hartford and Barkhamsted. He said when he attended CROG meetings the dialogue
seemed to show that the towns were not receiving proper information. Director Wawruck said since he
has attended Board meetings, as a Board member, he has found the communication has been improved
unbelievably. He said sometimes he spends more than a day and half on the Board material.

Director Wawruck said he has since seen the expertise on the CRRA Board and in all fairness he
really believes the current Board should serve jointly with the Municipal Advisory Committee to get a
better understanding of this material. Director Wawruck said there are a lot of misinformed Mayors and
First Selectmen out there often their terms being short and continuity being important; he believes there
should be a joining. He said the MAC meetings were very adversarial in the beginning as he served as
Vice-Chair for several meetings. Director Wawruck said after becoming a member of the CRRA Board
he divorced himself from the MAC Governance Committee issue to keep an open mind.

Chairman Pace said as CRRA goes into the new contracts with the three Tier options, a question
of whether a one year Mayor will get a seat on this Board emerges or will there be some continuity of
members that may be with the Board for five years or fifteen years and the best interest of CRRA should
be considered. Chairman Pace noted that this resolution was accepted.

MOTION RECOGNIZING MARK A. LAURETTI FOR HIS SERVICE TO THE
CONNECTICUT RESOURCES RECOVERY AUTHORITY

Chairman Pace made a motion on the above referenced item. Director Van Winkle seconded the
motion.

WHEREAS, in 2002 the Connecticut Resources Recovery Authority was crippled by its
involvement with Enron Corporation, endangering its ability to provide vital services to the
people of Connecticut; and

WHEREAS, the General Assembly reconstituted the Connecticut Resources Recovery
Authority to include more municipal representation on its Board of Directors; and

WHEREAS, in June 2002 Mark A. Lauretti, Mayor of the City of Shelton, was appointed to the
new CRRA Board of Directors; and

WHEREAS, Mayor Lauretti has faithfully and conscientiously carried out his responsibility to
CRRA and, by extension, to the people of the State of Connecticut; and

WHEREAS, today, February 24, 2011, CRRA is operationally sound, financially stable and
ready to evolve into a true statewide organization; and

WHEREAS, Mayor Lauretti’s term on the CRRA Board of Directors has expired; now

17




BE IT RESOLVED, that the Connecticut Resources Recovery Authority thanks Mark A.
Lauretti for his years of dedicated service to the State of Connecticut and expresses its gratitude

for his role in CRRA’s success.

Chairman Pace asked that Mr. Nonnenmacher gets the signatures of the Board on this resolution
and that it be sent to Director Lauretti and the press.

The motion previously made and seconded was approved unanimously by roll call. Chairman
Pace, Director Edwards, Director Griswold, Director Harkins, Director Howe, Director Kelly, Director
Martland, Director Mullane, Director Painter, Director Wawruck, and Director Van Winkle voted yes.

Directors

Aye

Nay | Abstain

Michael Pace, Chairman

Timothy Griswold

John Harkins

Dot Kelly

Theodore Martland

-Nicholas Mullane

Ron Van Winkle

XXX XXX | X

Ad-Hocs

Steve Edwards, Bridgeport

Bob Painter, Mid-Connecticut

Steve Wawruck, Mid-Connecticut

Warren Howe, Wallingford

ADJOURNMENT

<[> [>¢ > |

Chairman Pace requested a motion to adjourn the meeting. The motion to adjourn was made by
Director Martland and seconded by Director Mullane and was approved unanimously.

There being no other business to discuss, the meeting was adjourned at 2: 55 p.m.

18

Respectfully submitted,

Moira Benacquista
Secretary to the Board/Paralegal




TAB 2




$347 MILLION BLANKET ALL RISK (subject to policy terms and exclusions)
INSURANCE, INCLUDING BOILER & MACHINERY, REAL AND PERSONAL
PROPERTY, BUSINESS INTERRUPTION AND EXTRA EXPENSE

RESOLVED: That CRRA purchase CRRA’s $347 Million Property Insurance from the
following four (4) insurers with their quota shares as indicated:

» Zurich (Rated A) 42.1%  (Lead)
> Swiss Re (Rated A) 26.3%
> Starr Tech (Rated A+) 25.3%
» Commonwealth (Rated A) 6.3%

for the period 4/1/11 — 4/1/12 for a premium of $617,052 and other terms and conditions as
discussed at this meeting;

FURTHER RESOLVED: That CRRA purchase loss control engineering services from XL
GAPS for the period 4/1/11 — 4/1/12 for an amount not to exceed $14,950 as discussed at this
meeting.

The premium is $632,002 (including terrorism and engineering). CRRA’s annualized
budget for this insurance is $736,433. This represents a favorable variance of 14%
($104,431) to budget.

The proposed premium is $4,239 (1%) less than last year’s annual premium for this
insurance program.




IL

Connecticut Resources Recovery Authority

All Risk Property Insurance Renewal
3/17/11

Current Policy

Expires 4/1/11 — $365 million Blanket All Risk (subject to policy terms and
exclusions) including Boiler & Machinery, insuring Real and Personal Property,
Business Interruption and Extra Expense

Property damage & boiler & machinery deductible $50,000, except Mid-CT,
Wallingford Facilities and Jets, which have a $250,000 deductible and Mobile
Equipment which has $100,000 deductible

Business Interruption/Extra Expense, deductible is the amount of loss during first
45 days after the occurrence

Five Insurers — Zurich 32.5%, Starr Tech 32.5%, Swiss Re 20%, Arch 10% and
Commonwealth 5% '

Engineering inspection services, were purchased from XL GAPS, for $16,295 for
the Mid-Connecticut facilities

4/1/10 — 4/1/11 total premium - $636,295 ($620,000 including terrorism and
engineering at $16,295)

Renewal Policy

Aon marketed the program limit of liability as $347 million.

CRRA’s total insured value (TIV) decreased from with the removal of the
Wallingford Facility; but specific Mid-CT locations increased in value due to
new equipment upgrades and additions.

Mid-CT facilities are the premium and limit drivers.

Aon Risk Services (Aon), CRRA’s broker/consultant, evaluated CRRA’s
Maximum Foreseeable Loss (MFL) at the Mid-CT facility to assist in
determining a reasonable overall property insurance limit given changes in
property values reported and the capacity available in the market.

Based upon engineering reports prepared by XL GAPS Engineering covering the
highest valued Mid-CT locations (boilers, turbines and twin packs), the MFL was
calculated to be just over $300 million.

Current market capacity at competitive pricing would only support a limit of
$347 million.

Aon marketed the limit of $347 million as it maximizes current market capacity
and covers the Maximum Foreseeable Loss scenario.

The $347 million applies on a blanket basis, per occurrence for property damage
to all scheduled locations.

Aon marketed the program to all companies listed on the spreadsheet attached
(Exhibit A).

The market is not as soft as last year; management and engineering changes in
some insurance companies influenced responses.

Significant issues related to quota sharing, deductibles and engineering were
discussed and resolved through negotiations.

Aon was successful in achieving a premium of $617,052 (including
terrorism).




Deductibles are the same as last year - property damage, $50,000, except
Mid-CT WPF, PBF, EGF and Jets, $250,000; mobile equipment,
$100,000.

Solid quotes were received from Zurich, Starr Tech, Swiss Re and
Commonwealth.

After negotiation, the final quotes reflected the following percentages:

» Zurich (Rated A) 42.1%  (Lead)
> Swiss Re (Rated A) 26.3%
> Starr Tech (Rated A+) 25.3%
» Commonwealth (Rated A) 6.3%

This leaves four of the five incumbent insurers on the program. Arch came off of
the program due to their change in appetite for energy industry exposures.

Three out of the four prior insurers increased their percentage shares. Starr Tech
decreased participation by 7%.

Zurich’s 42.1% share makes it the lead insurer.

Engineering

Most states, counties or cities, including the State of Connecticut, require periodic
inspections of commercial boilers or pressure vessels (jurisdictional
inspections/engineering). The law or regulations may also require a certificate that attests
the equipment complies with these requirements.

In addition to these engineering services, for the past several years, CRRA increased the
scope of engineering services purchased to include:

Loss control visits where the company loss control engineer completed extensive
evaluation of the risk and provided summaries of findings and written
recommendations to mitigate potential property damage. These services were
provided for the following facilities:

1) Mid-CT Electric Generating Facility (EGF)
2) Mid-CT Power Block Facility (PBF)

3) Mid-CT Waste Processing Facility (WPF)
4) Mid-CT Twin Packs

Because of the value of and complexity of the Mid-CT facilities, inspections
which produced recommendations for improvements, and discussions with in-
house engineers, it was determined that loss control engineering of the type
described above continues to be beneficial to CRRA.

Aon has stated that underwriters need engineering reports to evaluate the
potential risk of loss and adequate protection of that risk. Without that,
underwriters will not provide quotes especially on power generation exposures.

The fact that CRRA put into place a formalized loss control inspection plan and
followed up those inspections with a spreadsheet of responses to those open
recommendations cannot be discounted as a factor in achieving good renewal




III.

pricing. This shows an understanding of the potential risk of loss and a
willingness to improve that risk.

Going forward it is important to prove to the marketplace that the safety
programs currently in place at the sites are well documented and that the
operators are being held accountable where there is a need for improvement.

Since 2008, CRRA has utilized the services of XL GAPS for third party
engineering. Over the past few years, proposals were sought from other third
party engineering companies for the Mid-CT WPF, PBF, EGF and Twin Packs
facilities which ranged from $10,500 (Risk Logic) to $16,400 (Paragon) for
similar services. Even with lower priced option, the analysis from our in-house
engineering professionals after reviewing the proposals and sample reports was
that XL GAPS provides the most comprehensive oversight for the least amount
of money.

There have been no changes in the companies offering third party engineering
nor in their sample reports or service that would be provided. In addition, the
pricing for such services has remained consistent. This year, Risk Logic
($12,500) and Paragon ($17,000).

Given XL GAPS’ familiarity and relationship with CRRA, Aon recommends
continuing with the same services provider.

This year XL GAPS offered to continue to provide these services at the same
locations for $14,950. (The initial quote was for $16,295 but Aon was successful
in getting it lowered).

In addition to the XL. GAPS service, one of the insurers, Starr Tech, has offered
to have its engineers inspect the same facilities and prepare a report and
recommendations at no charge to CRRA. If the insurer-provided inspection
report proves useful, we may be able to reduce the cost of outside loss control
engineering next year by using insurer-provided inspectors. (There is historical
precedence for this as CRRA relied upon the former Hartford Steam Boiler
(HSB) for both property insurance and engineering for many years).

Management Summary & Recommendation

Policy expiration on 4/1/11 requires approval at the March 24, 2011 Board
meeting for continuance of coverage

Property insurance, business interruption and extra expense on CRRA property is
required due to ownership and/or contractual requirements




e Management recommends securing the $347 million all risk property insurance
coverage for the period 4/1/11 — 4/1/12 as follows:

Insurer % Participation of $347M
» Zurich (Rated A) 42.1%  (Lead)
» Swiss Re (Rated A) 26.3%
» Starr Tech (Rated A+) 25.3%
> Commonwealth (Rated A) 6.3%

¢ Management recommends selection of XL. GAPS for loss control engineering,
inspection and reporting for $14,950 and engaging Starr Tech engineers to
provide loss control engineering, inspection and reporting at no charge to CRRA
for these services.




| April1,2011-2012 |

- Comments

Covers Maximum

Limit of Liability $365 million $347 million Foreseeable Loss at Mid-
Connecticut

Deductibles $50,000 except
Property Damage: $250,000 at Mid-CT No change

and Wallingford

facilities and jets,

$100,000 Mobile

Equipment

Time Element: 45 days No change
Annual Premium $620,000 $617,052 -1% Decrease
Engineering $ 16,295 $ 14,950 8% Decrease —

- Mid-CT consists of 4
facilities and is maximum
potential loss

(jurisdictional ‘No change
inspections & loss
prevention visits to 4
facilities w/reports &
recommendations)
Terrorism Within premium No change
TOTAL $636,295 $632,002 1% Decrease




IV. Finance Committee Recommendation to.the CRRA Board

The Finance Committee has reviewed and discussed renewing CRRA’s Property
Insurance and recommends the purchase of the $347 million policy for a premium of
$617,052 from the following four (4) insurers with their quota shares as indicated:
Zurich 42.1%; Swiss Re 26.3%; Starr Tech 25.3%; and Commonwealth 6.3%; and
engineering services from XL GAPS for $14,950.

The overall premium for $347 million of property insurance, including business
interruption and extra expense, engineering and terrorism coverage is $632,002 ($4,293
less than last year).




"sjuswaaiBe Jaused pue sme| osouy) o} Juensind 1SOdep U S18 SPUNy LONS SjIUM POUIES BLIOOU| JUSUSBAUL JO Jsaisiul 8y} Uielad [IIM SHY "PojiWSI 94 O} anp ale Ay [IJUn sme| esuelnsu) ajgedidde|
M 80UBDPIODOE Ul sjunodoe Aleldnpy ol sjuswAed esey) sisodap pue ‘sjusly o} sdueRiwel Joj Aed seiuedwod 80URINSU] SPUNJaJ SE ||oMm SE ‘SIBlised 0} adueRiwel 104 Aed sjusi) swnjweld seAleda) SHY .
L - $81ns0}osIg
V/N VIN V/IN 0 vwN Ty T " T asuodsay oN 07 sdueInsu| weiboid
uojbuixan Auadoid
VIN VIN V/N 0 V/IN © 7 TBuussulbua o) enp paliped psuljoeqg 1008y weiboid
. Auedoid
VN . o Viki R g BBl of ohp BRUIRG BoUI5G] SISYIIBBIR 81601,
: | souelnsu| Auaqry Auadoly
{

I 4 o OOTSOLOOS
VIN VIN VIN 0 papnjoul ueduawy pauan
JOV /yoe] leig - Wsuoua |
VIN V/IN VIN 0 00'6L2'9SL $ %€"S< 1e pajond uedusWy:! 000'000°.vE$
3OV /yos L MBS 40 ued
000°058°28%
VIN VIN V/N 0 papnjoul yjlesmuowiwod Yddidl
VIN VIN VIN 0 00'v¥e'8e % %€’9 18 PRlOND|  Yleamuowilod:  000°000°LvES
1o yed
000°'006°L2$
VIN VN VIN 0 papnjoul (aY ssims) M| VididL
VYIN VIN YIN 0 0069229l $ %¢'9¢ 1e palonD| (Y ssmMS) IdlT  000°000°2FES
Jo ued
00005Z°16$
V/IN V/IN V/N 0 pspnjou younz Yddidl
VIN V/IN VIN 0 00've9'65Z $ %1 'TP 1e palonDd uounz: 000°000°L¥<$
jo ped
000°000°971$
VN VIN VIN 0 Yaly VedieL
VIN VIN /N 0 sainsodxa Ablaus pauljoaqg yoly wieiboid
Joj ayjadde u; sbueyo-pauloag Auedoid
TI0T ‘1 dY - 107 ‘T MdV W LAd104

FITENT
uoissiunuo)  djqedrdde j1  worssiuwo)  woISSIIWO asuodsay

o WU UOSBIY UONBHIPI(] JILLIE WRIS0.4J
AIBIPOULIDIU] ‘AJCIPIULIIIU] Pa2Isy SUv paon) E : d A HOREUPRIA OLED EEIRELI]

AjjeuoneN

weIs01d Ayrodoag
viquxy | . ‘ VIAAD 10§ 110day dansopsiq a3ond




g 31qiyx3

96773 999°Zv1$ 98Y v8.$ 2517726% ££9'869$ 815822 286987$ sfejo)
VLS 6.8 961°c$ G.5°c$ 1€22% rv8s$ 0L€es awWIlIY [erdseWWO)

I 957$ z6Y'v$ 8v6'v$ 08.'c$ 891'1$ 185'v$ Aynger Areronpig
€62V LEVVOLS . Z0077€9% - €evioss$  999°'7/6% - 89L't9i¢

Ayiqer seakojdwig
03$ 66£°28$ 96.L'vY LS G61°28L$ LSP'6LLS 8€.'29% 96L'v¥1L$ ® s[eldlyo dland

“SWinjueld
gh-tLoz pue.

NOSIMVdNOD 139dng Ol WNIN3Yd



TAB 3




RESOLUTION REGARDING THE PURCHASE OF PUBLIC OFFICIALS AND
EMPLOYMENT PRACTICES LIABILITY INSURANCE FOR THE PERIOD
4/1/11 - 4/1/12

RESOLVED: That CRRA’s Public Officials and Employment Practices Liability
insurance be purchased from ACE with a $10,000,000 limit and up to $10,000,000 in
defense costs and expenses outside the limit, and a $150,000 self insured retention for the
period 4/1/11 — 4/1/12 for a premium of $144,796, as discussed at this meeting.

The premium is $144,796. CRRA’s annualized budget for this policy is $182,195. This
represents a favorable variance of 21% ($37,399) to budget.

The proposed premium is equal to last year’s annual premium for this insurance policy.




Connecticut Resources Recovery Authority
Public Officials and Emplovment Practices Liability Insurance Renewal
3/17/11

I. Current Policy

e Expires 4/1/2011 — Public Officials and Employment Practices Liability Insurance
e $10,000,000 limit and up to $10,000,000 in additional defense costs and expenses
outside the limit
$150,000 self insured retention
Premium $144,796
Insurer — ACE American

IL Renewal Policy

¢ Quotes sought from ACE (Ace American, A+), [ronshore; Allied World
Assurance Company (AWAC), RSUI, Zurich, Chubb and The Hartford - (see
Exhibit A);

¢ CRRA received firm quotes from only one insurer: ACE, the incumbent, who
offered two options;

e Coverage continues to provide terrorism for no charge;
Options offered by ACE are listed below:

Self-Insured
Insurer Limit Retention Premium
Option #1 ACE $ 10,000,000* $150,000 $144,796
Option #2 ACE $ 10,000,000% $250,000 $135,382

*Defense outside limit - capped at $10 MM

e ACE terms and conditions are the same as last year:
- ACE provides defense costs in addition to limit, up to $10,000,000

- ACE (and all other markets) excludes injunctive relief in any form other than
monetary damages; however, ACE will defend such a claim up to $250,000

- ACE includes coverage for professional liability for employed professionals
including engineers, architects and lawyers




II1. Management Summary & Recommendation

e Section 1-125 of the Connecticut General Statutes (CGS) states that any director
or employee of CRRA, including ad hoc members, may not be held personally
liable for damage or injury, not wanton, reckless, willful or malicious, caused in
the performance of his or her duties and within the scope of his or her
employment or appointment as such director, officer or employee, or ad hoc
member

e CRRA is required to protect and indemnify all of its directors, officers and
employees in accordance with Section 1-125 of the CGS

¢ Public Officials Liability Insurance covers liability resulting from “wrongful acts”
— any act, error, misstatement, misleading statement, omission, neglect or breach
of duty committed or attempted by the insured, or Employment Practices
Violations by any Insured solely in the performance of duties for CRRA as
defined by the policy.

e This insurance provides secure, consistent, broad coverage with the least
troublesome exclusions available in the marketplace.

e Based upon benchmarking, CRRA’s claims history and pricing, purchase of a
$10,000,000 limit is reasonable at this time, particularly since there is an
additional $10,000,000 in defense costs provided outside of the policy limit.

e The premium savings between Options #1 and #2 does not justify selection of
Option #2 because the self-insured retention is $100,000 more expensive per
claim.

e Management in consultation with our broker recommends securing Option #1
$10,000,000 coverage limit with $150,000 self insured retention and up to
$10,000,000 in additional defense costs outside of the limit for a premium of
$144,796.

e This premium is exactly the same as the expiring policy.

Multi-year policies are not available for this insurance coverage.

e CRRA’s annualized budget for this program covering FY’11 and FY’12 is

$182,195 (see Premium to Budget Comparison, Exhibit B)

IV. Recommendation to CRRA Board

The Finance Committee has reviewed and discussed the options for renewing CRRA’s
Public Officials and Employment Practices Liability insurance, and

RESOLVED: That CRRA’s Public Officials and Employment Practices Liability
insurance be purchased from ACE with a $10,000,000 limit and up to $10,000,000 in
defense costs and expenses outside the limit, and a $150,000 self insured retention for the
period 4/1/11 — 4/1/12 for a premium of $144,796.




VIN VIN VIN awl pauljosg yaunz sjeldiyo
Siy} e abelanoo olqnd
_sjelpyjo olgnd
Buipinoid JoN
VIN VIN VIN +000°0S51$ pauijposg INsy wnwixeiN|  s[epwo|
wnjwaid 3sg ajeboibby aljqnd
'snjelg wen Adijod]
uadQ jusung 000°000's$
VIN VIN V/IN +000'GLL$ paulioeQg SN| wnewixe! sjeldPO
183 Buoud sBuip|oH sjefalbby aliqnd
seoA yse| uo aloysuoy] Adljod
anosdw youue) 000'000'S$
VIN VIN VIN abuel pauipaqg|  (OVYMY) Hwiyeyy  sjeiyo
000°000°05$ 0D| 8pisu| siso0) dlignd
Ul senuaaal aoueINSSY asusjeq
sJajeid PUOM ojebalbby
.suojjesadQ jo PalliY] 000'000°0L$
8doog pue azig :
VIN VIN VIN 28e'seL$ 1d3 0D S}S0D|  sjeyo
. . 000'052$ pue} edueinsu| asusje(g algnd
70d 000°'052$| ueouswy| 000'000°0L$
:omj uondo 30V| 3 ejebaibby
s|gnonpaq 000°000°0L$
- VIN VIN VIN 96.'vv1$ 1d3 00 S}S0D| sfeyo
000°061$ pue| -eoueinsuy| asuajeQ olgngd
704 000°0SL$| ueouswy| 00000001
:8uQ uondo 30V| % 9)ebaibby
8|gionpag 000'000°0L$
o 2102 ‘1 Idy - 1107 °f pady SULI3 ] Adjo 4
_ e - HOISSIWUIO)) UOSLIY
Suoissimwoy) - spqednydde yr

=$§E.Ecu 1
SAUV pajond wniwd.ag

dsuodsoy
JLIR)

pPadIdy

uonRMWpPI(
Ajredoney

RETRR ()

. JOLLIR WeI304 I38.10A0
ATepauLdyuy ‘Kreipowradyuy HIED d J

EONPLY PUE W) ‘AIQEr] §,[epYI0 AMqug

V Hquyxy VI 10 310doy 2ansopsi 23ond)



uoissuwoy sqeandde jy
Aseipauridyuy “AIRIpawLId) U]

V iquyxy

UOISSHUTO))
padudy
A[jeuoney

UOISSIWIO,)

SUV pajond)

1
wniRxg

UoSEIY
uoneuIPA(f
J2LLIE)

osuodsay
L)

ILLIR))

weasory

VIN VIN VIN 0 isenbai Jusifo sipeyd swuy
psyoeosddy JoN
V/IN VIN V/IN 0 ssauisng paulpeq ‘D swiLy
Jo sse|D
VIN VIN VIN 0 L¥6°02$ predaid ‘pajonpd younz Hwr swily
_ 000°000°c$
Jes\ @auy|
VIN V/IN VIN 0 v19'22$ 86G.$ younz Hwnn swiy
JO sjusuwyjjeysul 000°000°c$
jenuue Jes A saly
yum wesboud
JesA ¢ pajond
V/N VIN V/N 0 9Lz'/$ weiboid younz yw Wiy
ies A psjond 000°000°c$
JeoA auQ
VIN VIN VIN 0 885'6% 96L'c$| sisl@ARIL hwnn swuy
JO sjuswjjeisul 000'000°c$
jenuue Jes A saly|
yum weiboud
Jeah ¢ psjonp
V/IN "VIN VIN 0 }senbai a0 sieyo sjeloo
payoeoiddy JoN ollgnd
VIN V/IN V/N 0 sysiy psuljosg pJojienH sleloo
Amuz oygng onand|
J0j 19%Jew e JoN
VIN VIN V/IN 0 SHSIY psuijoeg qqnyod sjeyo
Anu3z olang oliqnd
10} }o)iew e joN

98BIIA0)

ENpLY pus swL) “Aymqerty s,[eygyQ0 AMqng
VIAD 105 3.10doy ansopdsiq ajond




9s0y} 0} Juens.nd Jisodep Lo sse SPUNy Yons sjiym
Sunoooe AJeronpy o siuswiAed ssayy susodsp p

PBUJES SOOI JUBLIISDAUL JO ISBIBIUI BU)} UIEIa) (M SHY "PaIWeI aq o} anp aJe Asy} [RUN sme} souelnsul
UE ‘SjusiiD 0} souewal Joj Aed ssjuedwod dUBINSU| SPUNY3J SE |[9Mm Sse

‘sjuswesibe Jslued pue smej
igeol|dde uym aduepioode uj

‘sJai41ed 0} soueRiWel Joj Aed suslo swnwald SOAIB03I SV |

_:o,mwm_iiou.. sjqeandde p1
Areipauwiioyuy ‘Areipowrioyug R

V Hquxy

HOISSIUIE0)
poaisy
[leuoneN

UOISSIUIUO))

I

SUV pazond wnmudag

HOSEIY
uoyrUIPA(q
LR

asuodsay
nuIe)

JLLIE))

weasorg

BIONPLY PUs dWILI) ‘AJIqer] §,[epyyQ Jqng
VI 10 3.10doy 2.1nsopdsiq ajond)

$9.nsoosIg
V/N V/IN V/N 0 swn pauliveg VND Adejonplg
SIY} Je ssauisnq
Awus olgnd
Bunum JoN
VIN V/N V/N 0 }senbau Jualjo siueyd Alelonpig
| payoeoiddy JoN
V/N V/N V/IN 0 aw psuifoag! ssoysuoy) Aleionpig
SIY} Je ssauisnq
Amue ojgnd
Bunum JjoN
VIN VIN VIN 0 £gL'es psiond A0V Hwit Aseronpig
000'000°c$|
Jes A sup
V/N VIN VIN 0 alv'el$ c6v'v§| siojeAell nwin| Asejonpig
v JO sjusuwijjeisul -000°000°c$
[enuue ‘pajonpd Jeah saiyy

28B.I9A0))




967 73
1427
68$

€6Z'7$

g Hqxg

999°Zv1L$
6.€$
9Sv$

LEV'vOLS

98y'v8.$
96l'c$
zev'vs

200'2€9$

Z51'/26%
GlS'e$
8¥6'v$

€EV'9eLS

££9'869%
€228
08.°'c$

999°2.5$

815'82e$
¥78%
89L°1L$

892'c9L$

286'88.%
oLe'es

185V$

G6Z'9€9$

s|ejol
awlY jeoJowwo?)
Aqer Aseronpig

Auedoud ysiy IV

21-L10 pue

- 9ouene;

SWniwdld - 1ebpng pazienu

L-0LOZ Mg/

S0k

NOSRIVdINOD 139and OL WNINIAd




TAB 4




COMMERCIAL CRIME INSURANCE
FOR THE PERIOD 4/1/11 - 4/1/14

RESOLVED: That CRRA purchase the three-year Commercial Crime policy from
Travelers Casualty & Surety Company with a $3,000,000 limit, $100,000 deductible for
the period 4/1/11 — 4/1/14 for an annual premium of $3,196, as discussed at this meeting.

The premium is $3,196. CRRA’s annualized budget for this policy is $3,575. This
represents a favorable variance of 11% ($379) to budget.

The proposed premium is $114 (3%) less than last year’s annual premium for this
insurance.




II.

Connecticut Resources Recovery Authority
Commercial Crime Insurance Renewal
3/17/11

Current Policy

Commercial Crime — Three Year Policy Expires 4/1/11

$3 million limit, $100,000 deductible — Premium was $3,310
Insurer — Travelers Casualty and Surety Company of America

Renewal Policy

This program was marketed to Travelers, Zurich and Great American (see
Exhibit A)

CRRA received 3-year program quotes with a limit of $3,000,000 and a
deductible of $100,000;

o Travelers (Rated A+) - annual premium $3,196. This is an annual savings
of $114 (3%) compared to the expiring policy. Three-year policy
premium $9,588

o Zurich (Rated A) - annual premium $7,558. This is an annual increase of
$4,248 (56%) compared to expiring policy. Three-year policy $22,674.

o Zurich (Rated A) — required prepaid premium $20,947. This is an increase
0f $11,017 (53%) compared to expiring 3-year total premium.

Zurich also quoted a 1-year policy — annual premium $7,216.
Great American declined to quote.

Crime Insurance is designed to cover losses due to public employee dishonesty,
theft, disappearance and destruction of money, securities and property. The
coverage limit of $3,000,000 is based upon the number of CRRA employees,
locations and revenues.

Benchmarking indicates that the average limit is $3 million for similar risks.

Travelers provides terms/conditions covering Investigative Expenses incurred to
determine the extent of any loss, and Funds Transfer Fraud covering computer
fraud and electronic, telegraphic, cable, teletype or telephone instructions
fraudulently transmitted to a financial institution directing such institution to debit
a transfer account and to transfer, pay or delivery money or securities from such
transfer account.




1. Management Summary & Recommendation

e CRRA has consistently sought multi-year guaranteed premium insurance policies.

e Travelers’ 3-year installment quote for $3,196 is the least cost option without
sacrificing terms/conditions.

e Management recommends securing the three-year policy from Travelers with $3
million limit, and a $100,000 deductible with a premium of $3,196 paid annually.
This represents a slight decrease ($114) over the expiring annual premium.

e CRRA’s annualized budget for this program covering FY’11 and FY’12 is $3,575
(see Premium to Budget Comparison, Exhibit B)

1V. Recommendation to CRRA Board

The Finance Committee has reviewed and discussed renewing CRRA’s
Commercial Crime insurance, and

RESOLVED: That CRRA purchase the three-year Commercial Crime policy from
Travelers Casualty & Surety Company with a $3,000,000 limit, $100,000 deductible, for
the period 4/1/11 —4/1/14 for an annual premium of $3,196.




VIN VIN VIN S psuljoeqg younz sjeidiyo
siy} 1e ebelanoo aliqnd
s|eloo alignd
Buipiaoud JoN
VIN VIN VIN +000°051$ pauijoeg INsy wnuwixey| sgewo|
wniweald I3 _ ajebalbby oliqnd
‘snjelg wien Aaljod;
usdQ juaun) 000'000'S$
VIN VIN VIN +000'G.L$ pauijoeg SN| wnewixeN| sjewdIO
v 13 Buond sBuipjoH a)ebaibby alqnd.
. sJesA jse| uo aJoysuodj Aoljod
aAoidwi Jouue) 000'000's$
VIN VIN VIN “abueil paulpeg|  (OVMV) Huwrisyy  sjeoyo
000°000°'05$ 00| @plsuj sjso0) olignd
Ul senuaAaJ aoueInNssy asugyeg
sioyeid PHOM ejebaibby
-SuonelsdQ jo PalllvVi 000°00001$
adoog pue azig :
V/N VIN V/N 28e'sels 143 0D SISOD| s[ewo
. . 000'052$ pue| aoueinsuy| asusjeq olqnd
70d 000°052$| uesuswy| 000'000°0LS
:om| uondo JOV| % syebaibby
o|qonpeg 000'000°'0L$
VIN VIN V/IN 96.'v¥L$ 143 0D SISo]| sjepyo
000°0S1$ pue| -soueinsu) asusjaq oljqnd
70d 000°0SL$| ueouswy| 000'000°0L$
8uQ uondo JOV| % sjebaibby
sjgnonpaQ 000°000°0L$

HOISSINIO0))
PRIy
Ajjeuwonen

.., ...ommm_iiou o_aao:na.a &
Lrepawisuy ‘Aieipourtoyuy

V nquxy

UOISSIuwo)y
SUV paonQ) wnjwoag

!

UOSLIY
UONBUII(
JBLLIR)

2107 1 1dy - 1107 1 pady ‘wiae Aonjog

dsuodsay
Juae)

JOLLIE))

weagoag

eNPLY PUE JUI)) AIqer] §,[eRYI0 JNqng

988.I10A0))

VI 10§ 310day samsopsi( ajond)




VIN VIN V/IN 0 }sanbai juayo siyeyn swu)
payoeoiddy JoN
VIN VIN VIN 0 ssauisnq pauloeqg vO swiy
jo sse|n
VIN VIN VIN 0 1y6°02$ plede.d ‘pajonpd younz Hwi swuy
000'000°c$
Jea) saiy|
VIN VIN VIN. 0 v29°22$ 8GG.L$ Yyounz Hwnn swHD
JO sjusuwjesug 000°'000°c$
[enuue Jea A saay
yum wesboid
JesA ¢ psyonDd ‘
VIN VIN VIN 0 912'L$ weJboid younz Jwr swuy
JesA | pejonp 000'000‘c$
Jeap auQ
VIN VIN VIN 0 88569 961'c$| sislenelL Hwn swuy
_ O sjusuwjjejsul 000°000°c$
[enuue Jea) sauy|
yim wesboud
Jeah ¢ pajonp
V/N VIN VIN 0 Isenbail jusjio siHeyd sjediyo
payoeoiddy JoN olland
VIN VIN VIN 0 SYsiY pauijosQg plojieH S{eidiyo
Anuz olgng dliand|
104 19¥Jew e JoN
VIN VIN VIN 0 sysiy paulpe( agnyd S[edyo
Awuz ongnd dlland
10} }9jew e JoN
UOISSIULIO) R

UOSEIY
HONBUII(]
JOLLIE)

{o%&i&ou ojqeondde ;i

UOISSIWITIUO0)) | 1
Arerpouniayuy “Kieipourtoyuy R

SUV pagond wnmudag

asuodsoy
LR

PadIdy
lfeuoneN

JOLLIB) weisold  95eadA0)

EONPLY PUE JWLX) ‘AJIGErT S,[EPYIQ Aqnd
VIO 10} 110doy aansopsi(y 230nd)

V Hquxy



3oy o} yuensind yisodap Uo 8ie SpUNy YONS SfiyM PIUIES BUWIODUI JUBWISIAU

"sjustusasbe Jauleo pue SME|

10 3S8U8jul 3} Ulelal 1M SHY "PaRILaI 8q 0) 8NP aJe AU} N SMe| 2ouBINSUl siqeoldde uyMm souepIodIe |

SiUnoode Aselonpy ojul sjuswAed ssay) siisodep pue ‘SJusID 0) SouBHLS. 104 Aed sojuedWod BOUBINSU} SPUNJBI SE [[BM SE ‘SIBLLIED O} SIUBRILS 10 hed syual) swiiweid seAR08) SHY |

V nquxy

BIONPLY pue swx) “Ajiqery s,jepyjo Aqng
VA 10 310doy 2ansopsi( djon)

$8JNSOOSI
VIN VIN VIN 0 swy pauijoeQg VND Adejonply
: Siy} Je ssauisng
Aus olgnd
Bunum joN
VIN VIN VIN 0 }senbaljusid|  sheyn Kieronpig
payoeoiddy joN
VIN VIN VIN 0 U pauijosq| eoysuoi] Kiepnpiy
SIUy} Je ssauisng
Aue oygnd
Bunum JoN
VIN VIN VIN 0 €81'cs paIonD 30V NWI| Kiepnpig
000'000°c$
Jes ) auQ
VN VIN VIN 0 oLV ErS 26V VS| Siojenei] | Adeonpig
J0 syuswilEIsul 1000'000'c$
[enuue ‘pajond) Jeah saly)
wopsstmuro)  ojqeondde g —.Em&:m:cu UOISSIUILIO0) 1 HosuoY asuodsayy .
Areipouoyuy “Areipauniojuy e SUV pazond) wnwdsg ohsuiRaq PLLIE) 1OHAED Wessoig  oduIA0)
: ST AjjeuoneN : RETEN o I

[



9%6v'y

68$

€6Z'v$

0%

gaquxg

999°Zv1$ 98v'v8L$ ZS1'LZ6% £€9'869$ 815'82Z$ 286'88.% sjejo

9sv$ z6Y'vs$ 8v6'v$ 08.'c$ 891°L$ 185v$ Ainger Ateronpiy

LEV'POLS 2002€9% eev'oeLs 999°'C.5$ 89.'¢9L$ G62'9€9$ Ayadoud ysiy iy

| Ayliqer seskojdwy
66£'2E$ 96.'v¥1$ S61'28L$ LSY'6LLS 8€.'29% 96.'Vv1$ B SeIo0 dliqngd

NOSRIVAINOD 1390Nd O1 WNINZRNd




TABS




FIDUCIARY LIABILITY INSURANCE
FOR THE PERIOD 4/1/11 - 4/1/14

RESOLVED: That CRRA purchase the three-year Fiduciary Liability policy
from Travelers Casualty and Surety Company with a $3,000,000 limit, and a
separate $1,000,000 outside the limit for defense expenses, and a $5,000
deductible for the period 4/1/11 — 4/1/14 for an annual premium of $4,492.

The annual premium is $4,492. CRRA’s annualized budget for this policy is $4,948.
This represents a favorable variance of 9% ($456) to budget.

The proposed premium is $89 (2%) less than last year’s annual premium for this
insurance. ‘




IL

IIL.

Connecticut Resources Recovery Authority
Fiduciary Liability Insurance Renewal
3/17/11

Current Policy

Fiduciary Liability Policy Expires — 4/1/11

$3 million limit for damages/defense and $1 million separate limit for defense and
expense, $5,000 deductible/

Three-Year Policy - annual premium was $4,581

Fiduciary Liability Insurance pays, on behalf of the insured, the legal liability
arising from claims for alleged failure to prudently act within the meaning of the
Employment Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 (ERISA). “Insured” is
variously defined as a retirement plan or employee benefit plan, except Employee
Stock Ownership Plans (ESOPs), any trustee, officer, employee, any other
administrator, designated as a fiduciary. Group life and medical expense plans, as
well as pension and retirement plans, are within the scope of the law. It does not
cover the Sponsor (Employer) - CRRA.

Insurer — Travelers Casualty and Surety Company of America.

Renewal Policy

This program was marketed to Travelers, ACE, Ironshore and CNA - (see
Exhibit A)

CRRA only received one quote for the Three-Year Policy (Travelers-Rated A+))
and one quote for an annual policy (ACE-Rated A+))

Travelers’ quote for the $3 million policy for a 3-year period is $4,492 per year
ACE’s quote for the $3 million policy for a 1-year period was $3,181.

Ironshore declined to quote.

There are no other fiduciary markets providing coverage for public entities.

Management Summary & Recommendation

Discussions with our broker indicate there are no unusual exposures to CRRA and
that the terms/conditions are the same as last year

Aon recommends purchasing the three-year fiduciary insurance policy from the
current carrier, Travelers

CRRA has consistently sought multi-year guaranteed premium insurance policies

Aon has advised that the $3 million level appears reasonable for CRRA’s
exposures.




e Management, in consultation with our broker, recommends securing the three-
year $3,000,000 policy with a $5,000 deductible, and separate defense costs of
$1,000,000, for an annual premium of $4,492 from Travelers. This premium
represents an $89 increase over the expiring three-year annual policy premium.

e CRRA’s annualized budget for this program covering FY’11 and FY’12 is
$4,948. (see Premium to Budget Comparison, Exhibit B)

IV. Recommendation to CRRA Board

The Finance Committee has reviewed and discussed renewing CRRA’s Fiduciary
Liability insurance, and

RESOLVED: That CRRA purchase the three-year Fiduciary Liability policy from
Travelers Casualty and Surety Company with a $3,000,000 limit, and a separate

- $1,000,000 outside the limit for defense expenses, and a $5,000 deductible for the period
4/1/11 —4/1/14 for an annual premium of $4,492.




VIN VIN VIN 0 sw pauloeq younz s|eiyo
SiY} Je abelanoo oland
s|elolo olignd :
Buipinoid JoN
VIN VIN VIN 0 +000°051$ pauljoeg INsy wnwixep |  sfeioyo|
wniwsaid 3s3 9jebaibby alqnd
'snjeig wiejd | Aoljod
uadQ euny _ 000°000°'s$
VIN VIN VIN 0 +000'G.L$ paulioeg SNj wnewixey|( sjeldIyoO
183 Buoud sbuipjoH a1ebaibby olqnd
\ s Jesah ise| uo aioysuoy) Aoljog
aAoudwi Jouued 000'000'G$
VIN VIN VIN 0 obuel pauipeqg| (OVMmv) jwrisyy|  sjeoylo
. 000'000°05$ 00| opisu| s3s0D dlignd
Ul senuaaal aoueInssy asusye(
sJojaid PHOM ojefaibby
‘SuopeladQ jo PallIV| 000'000°0L$|
adoog pue 8zig :
VIN VIN V/IN 0 28e'selLs 1d3 0D SIS0D| sjeldyo
_ . 000'05Z$ pue| aoueinsu| asuayeQg oljgnd
10d 000°052$| ueouswy| 000‘000°0L$
:om ] uondo 30V| 9 eebaibby
||qnonpaq _ 000°000°0L$
VIN VIN VIN 0 96.L'vPL$ 143 0D S}S0D| s[eyo
000°0SL$ pue| -asueinsuy| asusjaqg ollqnd
70d 000°'051$| ueouswy| 000°000°0L$
:8uQ uondo 30vV| % o)ebaibby
|[gionpag 000'000°01$

210T ‘1 AV - 1107 ‘T dy wAonog|

osuodsay]

uosssimuwo)  ofqeoydde yy

UOISSIWIIO)) _ UOSEIY
uoISSIUO0)) I
Arerpauidyuy  ‘Arerpounioyuy £

posdy uoyeUIPIQ i
ewopey SV PIOND wnimorg ou 1L

EIONPLY puE SUILL) ‘AIIqer] §,[ePpRjQ Mqnd
VII) 10 J10doy 2amsopsi( 2j0nd)

L) welsodg  258I0A0))

V nquxy




VIN VIN VIN 0 1sanbau Jualo sipeyD awl)
payoeoiddy JoN
YIN VIN VIN 0 ssauisng psulioeqg VO swy
Jo sse|n
VIN V/IN VIN 0 Lv6'0Z$ preda.d ‘pajonp younz ywiy swlD
000°'000°¢$
Jesa) 93y
VIN VIN VIN 0 v29'22$ 86G.$ younz Hwin awily
40 sjuswjjeisui 000°000°c$
jenuue Jes sauy)
yum wesboud
JesA ¢ pajond
VIN VIN VIN 0 oLz'L$ weJboid younz Hwi swuy
JesA | pajond 000'000‘c$
Jes p aup
VIN VIN VIN 0 885'6% 961'c$| sioEARI] Hwn swiuy
JO sjuswijjeisul 000°000'c$
jenuue Jea) salyy
yim wesbouad
Jesh ¢ pajonpd
VIN V/N V/N 0 }senbau jusio sipeyn S|edIyo
payoeoiddy JoN alqnd
VIN VIN V/IN 0 SHsiY pauljoeg piojieH S[eigo
Anug ongng dlignd|
J0j }o)JeuW & JON
VIN VIN VIN 0 SHSIY pauljoeg aqanyd Sieldyo
Aug ongng aiqngd
10} }9)lew e JoN

womssiuwoy)  ojqeondde I
Arerpounidyuy ‘Arepow

V iquxy

PARIgdy

Jpuy AreuonN SUV PI3ond wnuudig

UOISSIUIIO))

UOISSIWIO))

1

uosedy
uonRUIPI(
0L

osuodsay
JaLae)

RETRR TG

weisoag

98BI0A0))

BIONPLY PUE SWLL) ‘A)IqErT] §,[BPYIQ Mqng
VHID 103 310doy sansopdsi(q a0n)




980y} 0} Juens.nd ysodep uo aJe spuny yons ajym
sjunoocoe Aleronpy ol sjuswiAed asayy sysodap p

PaUIed BWOdU| JUSWISBAU] JO JSaUalul BY) Ule)al
Ue 'syusiio 0) souenwa. 1oy Aed ssjuediuod eoue

"sjuswoaibe Jauled pue sme|

% SYY "paRiwal 89 0} anp aJe A3y} [BUN sme| soueinsul aiqestdde yum 9dUBpIoOT. Ui
INSUI SPUNJI SE Jjom Se ‘sialued o) souBRIWR) Jo} Aed SJUBID SWNIwad SeA908) Syv ,

V nquyxy

TeNPL pus UNLY)) ‘AN[IGErT §,[BOGJO JNqng
VIAD 10} 310day sansopsi( ajond)

$8JNSOOsIq
VIN VIN VIN 0 sy psuljoeQg VND Atelonpiy
SIY} Je ssauisng
Aus oygnd
Bunum joN
VIN VIN VIN 0 Jsenbau jusiid siHeyo Adejonply
payoeosddy JoN
VIN VIN VIN 0 swiy - psulideg|  asoysuoyj Atejonpiy
SIY} Je ssauisng
Aus oljgnd
Bunum joN
VIN VIN VIN 0 £gL'cs psjonp 30V ywryf Aseronpig
000°000°c$
Jes) auQ
VIN VIN VIN 0 9l¥'eL$ 26v'v$| siolenes] ywr| Asejonpiy
JO sjuswjjejsul -000°'000°c$
[enuue ‘pajonp Jesh saiy|
..:o,m%_EEcU orqeardde 1 ._Smm_EnEoU UOISSIW O] 1 HosEsy Jsuodsay ‘
Arepaunidjuy “‘Areipawaoyuy paloy V1 ojon{) W Hoheuipaq 1DLLIE RLIE) weisold  oBvioao)
AT ST 1 Ajeuoney SV P redd RETRET ) PLILD

!




L4

<t
-
-
@

688

£62'v$

0$

g 3qiyxy

999°ZyL$ 98Y'v8.$ 2Sl'.z6$ ££9'869% 815'8ZZ$ 286'88.$ sjejo
6.¢$ 96L'c$ Gls'c$ L€L'ZS 14¢:13 oLe'es QW) [eIoJaWWo)

. 8vers

LEV'POLS 200'2£9$ £EV'98L$ 999'2.5$ 89.'€9L$ $62'9€9$ Ayedoid sty |1V
Aiiqern seekojdwiz
66€°LE$ 96.'vi1$ $61'281$ LSY'6LL$ 86.'29% 96.'v¥1$ B S[e1oRo aNand

NOSRIVdINOD 139aNndg OL WNINIXNd



TAB 6




RESOLUTION REGARDING PAYMENT TO FORMER
WALLINGFORD PROJECT MEMBER TOWNS OF CERTAIN
REMAINING PROJECT FUNDS

WHEREAS, on April 23, 2009 the Connecticut Resources Recovery Authority’s (the “Authority”)
Board of Directors (the “Board”), in consultation with and with the unanimous consent of the
Wallingford Project Policy Board (the “Policy Board”), authorized the closing and transfer of
various funds in order to provide an initial distribution of surplus funds to the Wallingford Project
member towns; and

WHEREAS, the Policy Board has previously requested that remaining project funds be equitably
distributed based on a five-year weighted average of tons delivered to the Wallingford Project
member towns, consisting of the towns of Cheshire, Hamden, Meriden, North Haven, and
Wallingford, Connecticut (the “Towns”); and

WHEREAS, on April 27, 2009 the total amount of $26,674,579 was distributed to the Towns based
on the weighted average of Acceptable Solid Waste delivered by each Town during the five-year
time period beginning July 1, 2003 and ending June 30, 2008; and

WHEREAS, the Wallingford Project officially ended on June 30, 2010; and

WHEREAS, the Authority’s outside financial auditors (“BST”) completed its first quarter fiscal
year 2011 review on November 18, 2010; and

WHEREAS, on November 18, 2010, the Board authorized a second distribution of $15,995,496 to
the Towns that was distributed based on an updated percentage of the relative amounts of
Acceptable Solid Waste delivered by each Town to reflect delivered and diverted tons for the five-
year time period beginning July 1, 2005 and ending June 30, 2010;

WHEREAS, BST has completed it financial review dated January 31, 2011; and

WHEREAS, there exists a hauler receivable in the amount of $1,513.60, which will be written-off;
and

WHEREAS, the Project Closure Reserve established by the Board in November 2009 to provide
for post project expenses requires additional funds to complete activities, which can be transferred
from the Operating STIF account; and

WHEREAS, the amount of $3,424,458 is identified surplus and can be distributed to the Towns.

NOW THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY

RESOLVED: That the amount of $3,443.00 be transferred from the Wallingford Operating STIF
account to the Wallingford Project Closure STIF account; and

FURTHER RESOLVED: That the amount of $3,424,458 be distributed to the Towns in the
percentage values and dollar amounts as follows:

Total Tons Delivered FY Percentage of Amount to be
Town: 2006-2010: Tonnage: Distributed:
Cheshire 99,877.67 13.41% $ 459,219.81
Hamden 171,685.53 23.06% 789,680.02
Meriden 164,997.82 22.16% 758,859.89
North Haven 106,919.58 14.36% 491,752.17
Wallingford 201,104.24 27.01% 924,946.11
TOTAL 744,584.84 100.00% $ 3,424,458.00




"UOIEIPaWIaL J0] YURg 'S'(] YIIM (10T dun(

ut thmoaov (114/000°T$) 995 uonEASIUIWPE JO YoM s1eak oAl snid (00°D0SS BIUBAOD) Yiim JuswesISe Isd pung ysry pIoySulf[epy WO SPUNY Yilm PIYSHQRISH (1)

"000°699§ 3O [9A5] papuswiooal o) dn junowse Fuiiq 0

010T €1 12quiso3 U0 000‘9T1$ JO JoJSURL S109[3a1 ‘0107 ‘8T 1290100 PSIEP UOHN[OSIY PIEOE 10 "JOYI0 ‘SUB]O SOURIMSUI “UOLBSNI] 2INJNJ J0OJ PLILWINSS JUNOUTY (¢)

'010T 12qUISAON Ul s19[neY 9AR0adsaI o) 03 paurnial ssom susodep yses Surarewoy (g)

‘dn-sni] 0107 189 & [BOSL]

343 JO BUBAOD 03 Juswiked 10y umeIpyim seM 000°0ZES ‘0T0T ‘€7 JOQUISAON UQ  “PUR 95} SIrng WOy S07F JO IBfsuen @M 6007 ‘6 9QUIBAON PIYSIIGRIST (1)

B/u L9€'EST e/u 124239 B/U 6¥1°EST [Typue] proj8ul[lep - ISni], J3J
B/u SE6°8SH L B/u LITHES L e/u 91Z°96%°L SAI89Y NSO 1504 [[Fpue] projsuljem
e/u 850°00S B/u 811°00S B/u - MOIDSH "PAWINY ANIOR BIUBAOD)/PIOJBUWITRA ()
e/u 868°599 $§ e 8TH 6¥S $ emu LOTLPOT  § puny ysry pioysur[em ©
“UOISTAI(] [[JpUe ]/A1I0d0IJ 07 PaiIofSuel]
8SP'YT'E $| SLV'89Y § €E6T63°C $ | 96V°S66°SIS | 610°09€02S | 6LSHL00TS | 91¢" IYT'LYS TVIOL ANVYD
B/u dgasoIo B/U -dISOT1D - 12€°11 1uNodoYy JuLres)
e/u dasoT1o - 789°S - 18€°LS nsode( owoisny
e/u aaso1o - Yoy 91 - 1€£°988 XOQ}00]
B/u ddsoI1o 0€8°29¥ 1 0€8°79t' b1 - ¥06°101°91 pun, uonezIiqelg 93 drj,
e/ adso1o 999°7€5°T 999°7€S°T S00°¥0L‘01 SOOPILTT pun 9s() 2Imng
8SH VTP cvb'e 106°LT¥'E - PEF 0TS PLS0LE'ST PLSOLY' QT punj SunesadQ
- TE0°S9Y TE0°S9Y - €16'128 - - amso) j03fo1g
SIUN0J3Y T03[01J PICISUI[e Al
‘uonnqrusiqy ‘PI°H 110T/1¢/1 0T0T/8TI/11 010T/0¢/6 600T/LT/Y 600T/1¢/1
10} 9q 03 paxrnbay] uonnqrysIq monnqrisi(q
dIqe[IBAY 19N puodRg 18

110T "1¢ Arenuer 3snoay; >NO~OGOH&O
SooueTeq pun,j Joolo1g PIOJSUI[[EAN




1107 'I€ dvnuppr parppdn

AAVINIAS TVIONVNIA MAOAONITIVA



SO[qRAIS09I SUIPUBISING [[€ POA[OSY e
SJUSWIRIL)S [EIOUBUY [[(T ‘T € AITBNUE[ JO MOIADI I0)IPNY o

"000°5€$ £q S1BWIIIS? O} JO SS90X0 U SEM JUnowre [euy oy ‘pred pue poledwod (10 1es X JeosTy 10y d)-oni] BjuBAOD e

SR} pare[dwo))

'SWRY po1o[durod dre MO[aq UMOYS "199{01 PIOJSUITR AN Y1 JO STIEIS JUSLIND oy} uo ayepdn ue sopiaoid a8ed Surmor[oy sy,

. "S1S00 SATIRIISTUTIIPR
pue [eS9] pojeroosse pue sSur(y K101BMS21 “s)S00 AoeZe] soueInsul ‘s)unoode pue spury jo Supipne [euly SUIPNOUl SWON I0J
Aed [[1m SPUTY 9S3Y], "9AIOSOY SPISN Iming pIoJSuTITe M U} WOy palijsuel) spunj yiim 000‘0z8$ Jo unowe oy ur (( J1LS,,) pun,
JISULSIAU] ULST, HOYS §,Md109UU0)) JO 93elS Y1 18 POYSI[qRISS Sem dAI9SaY 2mS0[)) 10a(01d PIOJSUI[[E B ‘6007 ‘6 IOqUIDAON UQ

'010T ‘0¢ aun uo 309{o1d Y1 JO UONIRUIULIS) SY) (3L PIIBIOOSSE S}SOO uoneuTuLL)} 10J Aed 01 puey Uo aq pinom
SPUTY JUSIOLJNS 1B} 2INSUS 0} SAIDSIY 2INSO[) 199(014 B JO UONBAIO OY) PAZLIOYINE SIOWSII(] JO PIEOE SV WID ‘6007 ‘6T Arenuel up

110Z '[€ &vnupp paivpdy)

AAVINIALLS TYIONVNIA QIOADNITIVM



e e v o9ersty | 09000 e umw%wm%mmo O1qed - o[qEAIR0RY JJJO-0LIA 1G2( peg

SLY'89V § erp'e (ST509€ $) LSS'ST8 $ TVIOL

LSS'S sSurureq AWO0dU] 3saI9)U)
. ] . 1811 sTy3 wo swat e Sunojdwion

685°2 (11¥'p¢) | ssoooxdup 000°09 103 51505 eIy ototog dapesTUTmpY

‘ ‘ (sxA €) 000°CT
ssoooxd u ., $1500 A9839] (A11[19%]) uonnyjo Rueansu

988°8¢€1 (r11'o) I (X 6) 000°021 1 (Aroeg) uopnjrog I
. 100y "13dQ . IST] STY} WO suIo)r

000°sL 0 $89001d U] woly Y91§ pred 00056 ITe Suns[dwoo 10y s3500 [efo] 1A [e3ey

< . (1eok 1od QT 1$) s1eoK oMy uonedoy

000°0ze 0 ssa001d up 000°0ze 103 os®a[ Surpying 3o wontod yenpisoy Justhe g asear| [enpisay

0006 : ssaooad U paid|dwod ¢ a1 S %Sm: J031pn
0 I SAIASY 000°6 PUB [ 10T A4 *oueng) 1811 s[eroueury Npny
‘ M1A210) (1S¢g) Ionpne opising :

0 (000°0z¢) 9jerduro) 000°68¢ 01Ad dn-anay, ejugao)
puny Suneradp . ("010 ‘saseorar armjuspur ‘SuoOnBUNULIS)

0 0 TRIOD | oy g wpreg | 000°98 D00 3p0m [e8e] LoTog) 29 UemIng [PSIROD puog
[rean(y (uoneonpy Surjokosy)

0 0 Rdwo) | 1 Aq pauLnyuoy 0 [orqR7 "(J I10J 20T0AU] [BUL] 103EUIP1007 10af01q

010%/1/L
ororduo BIUBAOD) (MLzT$) warsds yse A4 Juwdmby
0 0 16000 0] palIojsuen 0 (3105$) sreos yona], pue danrIn g dGy0

‘PIOH 03
paambay

s
junowy

VY
JdQ woay
papoau
junowy

TU/IE/N
ysnoaygy

*ASY 2amso[)
13foag
wo.ay syjuwi g

:snyeyg

SuIa)]

‘uonnossy

PDAIISY
Ul Junomy
/omsodxy

suondriasa(g

TI0T/1¢/T *AALVAdN — AATASTI TIN50 1) LOHIOYd QYOIDNITIVAL







CONNECTICUT

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS

OF AND FOR TRE

SEVEN MONTHS ENDED JANUARY
3k- 2011

TOGETHER WITH
ACCOUNTANTSY" REVIEW REPORT




CONNECTICUT RESOURCES RECOVERY AUTHORITY’S
WALLINGFORD PROJECT

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS OF AND FOR THE SEVEN MONTHS ENDED

JANUARY 31, 2011

TABLE OF CONTENTS PAGE
Independent Accountant’s Review Report 1
Financial Statements:

Balance Sheet 2

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and

Change in Net Assets 3

Statement of Cash Flows : 4

Notes to the Financial Statements 5-8
Supplementary Information:

Schedule of Net Assets 10

This document has been printed on recycled content paper
i




CONNECTICUT RESOURCES RECOVERY AUTHORITY’S

WALLINGFORD PROJECT

THIS PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK

This document has been printed on recycled content paper
ii




BOLLAM, SHEEDY, TORANI & CO. LLP
Certified Public Accountants
New York, New York

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT’S REVIEW REPORT

Board of Directors
Connecticut Resources Recovery Authority’s Wallingford Project
Hartford, Connecticut

We have reviewed the accompanying balance sheet of Comnecticut Resources Recovery Authority’s
Wallingford Project, as of January 31, 2011, and the related statements of revenues, expenses and changes in net
assets, and cash flows for the seven months then ended. A review includes primarily applying analytical procedures
to management’s financial data and making inquiries of company management. A review is substantially less in
scope than an audit, the objective of which is the expression of an opinion regarding the financial statements as a
whole. Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America and for designing,
implementing, and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements.

Our responsibility is to conduct the review in accordance with Statements on Standards for Accounting and
Review Services issued by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require us to
perform procedures to obtain limited assurance that there are no material modifications that should be made to the
financial statements. We believe that the results of our procedures provide a reasonable basis for our report.

Based on our review, we are not aware of any material modifications that should be made to the
accompanying financial statements in order for them to be in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

Our review was made for the purpose of expressing limited assurance that there are no material
modifications that should be made to the basic financial statements in order for them to be in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. The supplemental information presented
on page 10 is for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such
information has been subjected to the inquiry and analytical procedures applied in the review of the basic financial
statements, and we did not become aware of any material modifications that should be made to such information.

w ttom SLa«.xZ/Tm’ O cep

New York, New York
March 2, 2011




CONNECTICUT RESOURCES RECOVERY AUTHORITY’S
WALLINGFORD PROJECT

BALANCE SHEET
JANUARY 31,2011
(Dollars in Thousands)

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Unrestricted Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 4,551
Accounts receivable 2

TOTAL ASSETS $ 4,553

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accrued expenses ‘ $ 75
NET ASSETS
Unrestricted 4,478
Total Net Assets 4,478

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 3 4,553

See Independent Accountant’s Review Report and accompanying Notes to Financial Statements,

2




CONNECTICUT RESOURCES RECOVERY AUTHORITY’S
WALLINGFORD PROJECT

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS
FOR THE SEVEN MONTHS ENDED JANUARY 31, 2011
(Dollars in Thousands)

Operating Revenues $ -

Operating Expenses

Solid waste operations 131

Distribution to member towns 15,996

Other costs 111
Total operating expenses 16,238
Operating Loss (16,238)

Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses)

Investment income 21
Loss on disposal of equipment (166)
Net Non-Operating Expenses A _ (145)
Loss before Transfers (16,383)
Transfers out (4,220)
Change in Net Assets (20,603)
Total Net Assets, beginning of period 25,081
Total Net Assets, end of period $ 4,478

See Independent Accountant’s Review Report and accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.
3




CONNECTICUT RESOURCES RECOVERY AUTHORITY’S £

WALLINGFORD PROJECT ¥

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE SEVEN MONTHS ENDED JANUARY 31, 2011
(Dollars in Thousands)

Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
Payments received from providing services
Payments to suppliers for goods and services
Payments to employees for services
Distribution to member towns

Net Cash Used by Operating Activities

Cash Flows From Investing Activities:
Interest on investments
Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities

Cash Flows From Non-Capital Financing Activities:
Cash transfers out
Net Cash Used by Non-Capital Financing Activities

Net decrease in eash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period

Cash and cash equivalents, end of period

Reconciliation of Operating Loss to Net Cash
Provided (Used) By Operating Activities:
Operating loss
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net cash
provided by operating activities:
(Increase) decrease in:
Accounts receivable, net
Prepaid expenses
Decrease in accrued expenses and other current liabilities

Net Cash Used by Operating Activities

$ 641
(1,151)
(40)

(15,996)
(16,546)

21
21

____(8,046)
(8,046)

(24,571)

29,122

$ 4,551

$ (16,238)

829
49

(1,186)

86546

See Independent Accountant’s Review Report and accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.

4




CONNECTICUT RESOURCES RECOVERY AUTHORITY’S

WALLINGFORD PROJECT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE SEVEN MONTHS ENDED JANUARY 31, 2011

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A.  Entity and Services

The Connecticut Resources Recovery Authority’s
former Wallingford Project (the “Project”) is a
comprehensive solid waste disposal system which has
a unique legal, contractual, financial, and operational
structure that was governed by the Connecticut
Resources Recovery Authority (the “Authority™) until
June 30, 2010. The Authority is a body politic and
corporate, created in 1973 by the State Solid Waste
Management Services Act, constituting Chapter 446¢
of the Connecticut General Statutes.

The operating contract between the Authority and the
Project’s operator expired on June 30, 2010. The
contract had a provision whereby the Authority can
exercise an option to purchase the facility when the
contract ends. The Authority did not exercise its
option to purchase and the operator now owns the
Wallingford Resource Recovery Facility (the
“Facility”). The Authority has retained the right to
deliver 25,000 tons per year of solid waste to the
Facility. The five original Wallingford Project towns
signed agreements with the operator and continue to
deliver their solid waste to the Facility.

Certain assets included in the accompanying balance
sheet will be used for payment of the Project’s current
and projected liabilities.

Pursuant to the Release and Settlement Agreement
between the Authority and the operator, in June 2010,
the Authority established an Escrow Account with the
bond Trustee and deposited $500,000 in the Escrow
Account. In accordance with the Release and
Settlement Agreement, the Escrow Account will be
maintained until the Connecticut Department of
Environmental Protection determines that the
requirements of the Connecticut Transfer Act, as they
relate to the comveyance of the Facility, have been
satisfied, which period is estimated to be
approximately five years. The Escrow Account is
included in the balance sheet of the Authority’s
Property Division.

The financial activities of the Project are included in
the basic financial statements of the Authority. The
financial statements of the Project are intended to
present the financial position, and the changes in
financial position, of only that portion of the
Authority’s operations that pertain to transactions of

the Project. They do not purport to and do not
present fairly the financial position of the Authority
as of January 31, 2011, and the changes in the
Authority’s financial position for the seven months
then ended in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles.

The Project has not presented a management’s
discussion and analysis (“MD&A™) in accordance
with GASB Statement No. 34, Basic Financial
Statements - and Management’s Discussion and
Analysis - for State and Local Governments and
GASB Statement No. 37, Basic Financial Statements
- and Management’s Discussion and Analysis - for
State and Local Governments: Omnibus because the
focus of an MD&A is on a primary government. The
Authority, as the primary government, will provide an
MD&A in its annual report that will include analysis
of the financial activities relating to the Project.

B. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and
Basis of Presentation

The Project is considered to be an Enterprise Fund.
The Project’s operations and balances are accounted
for using a separate set of self-balancing accounts that
comprise its assets, liabilities, net assets, revenues
and expenses.

Enterprise funds are established to account for
operations that are financed and operated in a manner
similar to private business enterprises, where the
intent is that the costs of providing goods or services
on a continuing basis are financed or recovered
primarily through user charges.

The Project’s financial statements are prepared using
an economic resources measurement focus and the
accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized
when earned and expenses are recognized when
incurred.

The Project distingnishes operating revenues and
expenses from non-operating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from
providing services in connection with the disposal of
solid waste. The principal operating revenues of the
Project are charges to customers for user services.
Operating expenses include the cost of solid waste
operations, maintenance and  utilities, and
administrative expenses. All revenues and expenses
not meeting this definition are reported as non-
operating revenues and expenses.

See Independent Accountant’s Review Report.

5




CONNECTICUT RESOURCES RECOVERY AUTHORITY’S £

C. Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America (GAAP) requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities
and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at
the date of the balance sheet and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Such estimates are subsequently
revised as deemed necessary when additional
information becomes available. Actual results could
differ from those estimates.

D. Cash and Cash Equivalents

All  unrestricted and restricted highly liquid
investments with maturities of three months or less
when purchased are considered to be cash
equivalents,

E. Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable balance of approximately $2,000
represents service payment receivable from a
customer that has not been collected as of January 31,
2011.

F. Net Assets

Unrestricted net assets may be divided into
designated and undesignated portions. Designated
net assets represent the Authority’s self-imposed
limitations on the use of otherwise unrestricted net
assets of the Project. Unrestricted net assets have
been designated by the Board of Directors of the
Authority for various purposes. Such designations
totaled approximately $1.0 million as of January 31,
2011. Unrestricted designated net assets are sum-
marized as follows:

Unrestricted Designated
Net Assets ($000)
Post project 385

Future loss contingencies 663

Total $ 1,048

WALLINGFORD PROJECT

Restrictions of net assets are limited to outside third
party restrictions and represent the net assets that
have been legally identified for specific purposes. As
of January 31, 2011, the Project has no restricted net
assets.

G. Allocation of Expenses

The accompanying financial statements include
allocations of salary expenses incurred by the
Authority that pertain to the operation of the Project.

Allocations are made based on a weighted average of
significant operating criteria determined by the
Authority’s management.

Authority expenses that are allocated to the Project
consist of salaries of management, accounting and
environmental personnel employed by the Authority.
Allocations of such expenses for the seven months
ended January 31, 2011, totaled approximately
$40,000.

2. CASH DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

Cash and cash equivalents consist of unrestricted
Short-Term Investment Fund of the State of
Connecticut (“STIF”), which totaled approximately
$4.6 million as of January 31, 2011.

A. Cash Deposits
Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of a
bank failure, the Authority will not be able to recover
the Project’s deposits or will not be able to recover
collateral securities that are in the possession of an
outside party. The Authority’s investment policy
does not have a deposit policy for custodial credit
risk.

As of January 31, 2011, the Project’s cash deposits
were zero.

Investments in the STIF as of January 31, 2011, are
included in cash and cash equivalents in the
accompanying balance sheet. For purposes of
disclosure under GASB Statement No. 40, such
amounts are considered investments and are included
in the investment disclosures that follow.

See Independent Accountant’s Review Report.




CONNECTICUT RESOURCES RECOVERY AUTHORITY’S

Concentration of Credit Risk

The Authority’s Investment Policies are governed by
Connecticut General Statutes and project bond
indentures as contained in the Authority’s Investment
Policy. In general, these policies are designed to
ensure the prudent management of public funds, the
availability of operating and capital funds, and an
investment return competitive with comparable funds
and financial market indices.

Authorized investments for cash accounts, not
otherwise invested, must be made in Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation (“FDIC™) insured commercial
banks or trust companies and include time deposits,
demand deposits, and certificates of deposit.

B. Investments
Interest Rate Risk

As of January 31, 2011, the Project’s investments
consisted of the following debt securities:

Investment Maturities
(In Years)
Fair Less
Investment Value than Lo 6to  More
Type (8000) 1 5 10 than 10
STIF $ 4551 § 4551 § - § - §
Total $ 4551 § 4551 § -8 - 8

STIF is an investment pool of short-term money
market instruments that may include adjustable-rate
federal agency and foreign government securities
whose interest rates vary directly with short-term
money market indices and are generally reset daily,
monthly, quarterly, and semi-annually. The
adjustable-rate securities have similar exposures to
credit and legal risks as fixed-rate securities from the
same issuers. The fair value of the position in the
pool is the same as the value of the pool shares. As
of January 31, 2011, STIF had a weighted average
maturity of 24 days.

The Authority’s Investment Policy does not limit
investment maturities as a means of managing its
exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing
interest rates. The Authority is limited to investment
maturities as required by specific bond resolutions or
as needed for immediate use or disbursement. Those
funds not included in the foregoing may be invested

WALLINGFORD PROJECT

in longer-term securities as authorized in the
Authority’s investment policy. The primary
objectives of the Authority’s investment policy are
the preservation of principal and the maintenance of
liquidity.

Credit Risk

The Authority’s Investment Policy delineates the
investment of fiunds in securities as authorized and
defined within the bond resolutions govering the
Project for those funds established under the bond
resolution and held in trust by the Authority’s trustee.
For all other funds, Connecticut state statutes permit
the Authority to invest in obligations of the United
States, including its instrumentalities and agencies; in
obligations of any state or of any political
subdivision, authority, or agency thereof, provided
such obligations are rated within one of the top two
rating categories of any recognized rating service; or
in obligations of the State of Connecticut or of any
political ~ subdivision thereof, provided such
obligations are rated within one of the top three rating
categories of any recognized rating service.

As of January 31, 2011, the Project’s investments
were rated as follows:

Fair Moody's
Value  Standard  Investor Fitch
Security (8000)  &Poor's  Service  Ratings
STIF § 4551  AAAm  NotRated NotRated

Custodial Credit Risk

For an investment, custodial credit risk is the risk
that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty, the
Project will not be able to recover the value of its
investments or collateral securities that are in the
possession of an outside party. The Authority’s
investment policy does not include provisions for
custodial credit risk, as the Authority does not invest
in securities that are held by counterparties. In
accordance with GASB Statement No. 40, none of the
Project’s investments require custodial credit risk
disclosures.

See Independent Accountant’s Review Report.

7




CONNECTICUT RESOURCES RECOVERY AUTHORITY’S 4

Concentration of Credit Risk

The Authority’s Investment Policy places no limit on
the amount of investment in any one issuer, but does
require diversity of the investment portfolio if
investments are made in non-U.S. government or U.S.
agency securities to eliminate the risk of loss of over-
concentration of assets in a specific class of security,
a specific maturity and/or a specific issuer. The asset
allocation of the investment portfolio should,
however, be flexible enough to assure adequate
liquidity for the Project needs. As of January 31,
2011, 100% of the Project’s investments are in the
STIF, which is rated in the highest rating category by
Standard & Poor’s and provides daily liquidity,
thereby satisfying the primary objectives of the
Authority’s Investment Policy.

3. NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS
ISSUED AND NOT YET ADOPTED

During December 2010, Statement No. 62 of the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB),
Codification of Accounting and Financial Reporting
Guidance Contained in Pre-November 30, 1989
FASB and AICPA Pronouncements, was issued but
not yet adopted by the Authority. The objective of

WALLINGFORD PROJECT¥

the Statement is to incorporate into the GASB’s
authoritative literature certain accounting and
financial reporting pronouncements issued on or
before November 30, 1989, which does not conflict
with or contradict GASB pronouncements.

This Statement also supersedes GASB Statement No.
20, Adccounting and Financial Reporting for
Proprietary Funds and Other Governmental Entities
That Use Proprietary Fund Accounting, thereby
eliminating the election provided in paragraph 7 of
that Statement for enterprise funds and business-type
activities to apply post-November 30, 1989 FASB
Statements and Interpretations that do not conflict
with or contradict GASB pronouncements. However,
those entities can continue to apply, as other
accounting literature, post-November 30, 1989 FASB
pronouncements that do not conflict with or
contradict GASB pronouncements, including this
Statement.

This Statement is effective for financial statements for
periods beginning after December 15, 2011; however,
early adoption is encouraged. The Authority has not
yet adopted this Statement.

See Independent Accountant’s Review Report.

8




CONNECTICUT RESOURCES RECOVERY AUTHORITY’S
WALLINGFORD PROJECT

Supplemental
Information

This document has been printed on recycled content paper.
9




CONNECTICUT RESOURCES RECOVERY AUTHORITY’S
WALLINGFORD PROJECT

SCHEDULE OF NET ASSETS
JANUARY 31, 2011
(Dollars in Thousands)
Restricted net assets: 3 -
Unrestricted net assets:
Designated for:
Future loss contingencies 663
Post project 385
Undesignated 3,430
Total unrestricted net assets 4,478
Total Net Assets S 4,478

See Independent Accountant’s Review Report.
10




CONNECTICUT RESOURCES RECOVERY AUTHORITY’S

WALLINGFORD PROJECT

THIS PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK

This document has been printed on recycled content paper.
11




TAB 7




RESOLUTION REGARDING THE COMPLETION OF
BASELINE ECOLOGICAL RISK ASSESSMENT AT THE
WALLINGFORD LANDFILL

RESOLVED: That the President is hereby authorized to enter into a contract
with O’Reilly, Talbot & Okun Associates, Inc. to complete a baseline ecological
risk assessment at the Wallingford Landfill, substantially as presented and
discussed at this meeting.




Connecticut Resources Recovery Authority
Contract Summary for Contract entitled

Wallingford Landfill Baseline Ecological Risk Assessment

Presented to the CRRA Board on:
Vendor/ Contractor(s):
Effective date:

Contract Type/Subject matter:

Facility (ies) Affected:
Original Contract:
Term:

Contract Doliar Value:

Amendment(s):
Term Extensions:

Scope of Services:

Other Pertinent Provisions:

March 24, 2011
O'Reilly, Talbot & Okun Associates, Inc.
Upon Execution

Request for Services (RFS), pursuant to a 3-year
engineering services agreement.

Wallingford Landfill
3-Year Engineering Services Agreement
September 30, 2011

$53,773.00

Not applicable
Not applicable

Habitat characterization, surface water sampling,
sediment sampling, statistical analysis of data,
groundwater modeling, food web modeling, risk
characterization, and preparation of a Remedial
Action Plan (if required).

N/A




Connecticut Resources Recovery Authority

Wallingford Landfill Baseline Ecological Risk
Assessment

March 24, 2011

Executive Summary

This is to request approval of the CRRA Board of Directors for the President to execute a
Request for Services (RFS) with O’Reilly, Talbot & Okun Associates, Inc. (OTO) to
complete a Baseline Ecological Risk Assessment (BERA) at the Wallingford Landfill.
The BERA must be completed before certain other milestones under State and Federal
regulations pertaining to RCRA Corrective Action can be achieved. The total cost to
complete the BERA and prepare a Remedial Action Plan, if such a plan is required, is
$53,773.

Discussion

On April 16, 2009, CRRA submitted to the Connecticut Department of Environmental
Protection (CT-DEP) an application for a Stewardship Permit to regulate and authorize
post-closure care and Corrective Action at the Wallingford Landfill. CRRA’s application
for the Stewardship Permit included submission of a Screening Level Ecological Risk
Assessment (SLERA) dated April 6, 2009.

On September 16, 2009, the CT-DEP issued to CRRA Stewardship Permit No.
DEP/HWM/CS-148-004. Section I1.A.5 of the Stewardship Permit requires that CRRA
conduct additional ecological risk assessment activities identified by the CT-DEP
following its review of the SLERA. Via letter dated November 17, 2010, CT-DEP
requested that CRRA develop a schedule to complete additional ecological risk
assessment activities and prepare a Remedial Action Plan (RAP), if necessary, in order to
achieve the Corrective Action goals of “Remedy Decision” and “Construction Complete”
by September 30, 2011. CRRA submitted a written response to CT-DEP on December
17, 2010, and was notified by CT-DEP on January 26, 2011 that CT-DEP elected to
move forward with implementation of the schedule proposed by CRRA. CRRA met with
CT-DEP personnel on February 8, 2011 in order to establish the Baseline Ecological Risk
Assessment (BERA) objectives and discuss the investigative methods to be implemented.

In late January 2011, CRRA contacted three environmental engineering consulting firms
with expertise in ecological risk assessment, and with whom CRRA has executed three-
year Engineering Services Agreements. These three firms were Fuss & O’Neill, Inc. -




(F&O), GZA GeoEnvironmental, Inc. (GZA) and O’Reilly, Talbot & Okun Associates,
Inc. (OTO). In anticipation of issuing a Request for Proposal to these three firms, CRRA
provided each firm with PDF copies of various Wallingford Landfill ecological risk
assessment documents to review.

As part of the Request for Proposals process, CRRA met with the three environmental
consulting firms at the Wallingford Landfill for a site walk on February 9, 2011. At the
site walk, CRRA provided each firm with a bullet list that summarized CRRA’s meeting
with CT-DEP the previous day. The summary included the areas requiring additional
assessment (1.e., wetlands on the Landfill property and the former Barberino property,
and the Quinnipiac River), the constituents of potential ecological concern, the toxicity
testing guidelines that CT-DEP requested, and the ecological screening levels (numeric
criteria) to be utilized when assessing laboratory analytical results. Each firm was also
provided a copy of the project schedule that CRRA and CT-DEP had agreed to
implement. Given the non-prescriptive nature of ecological risk assessment, CRRA
requested that each firm develop its own BERA Scope of Work as part of its proposal.

On February 18, 2011, CRRA provided all three firms with written responses to those
questions that had been received from proposers by February 16, 2011 (i.e., the deadline
for questions, as established at the site walk). All three firms submitted proposals by the
March 1, 2011 deadline. The following table summarizes the “lines of evidence”
(assessment approaches) associated with each firm’s proposed Scope of Work:

PROPOSED ACTIVITY F&O GZA oTO
# of Sediment Samples 20 27 40
# of Surface Water Samples 13 23 13
# of Sediment Toxicity Tests 12 12 6

# of Surface Water Toxicity Tests 9 11 0
Habitat Characterization Yes No Yes
Benthic Invertebrate Sampling No No Yes
ﬁzaiy\s}lss/gfl‘i II\\/I/Ietals in Sediment Yes No No
Analysis for Volatile Organics No Yes Yes
Food Web Modeling No No Yes

The cost proposed by each firm to complete its Scope of Work was as follows:

Firm Proposed Cost
Fuss & O’Neill, Inc. (F&O) $49,100
GZA GeoEnvironmental, Inc. (GZA) $74,800
O’Reilly, Talbot & Okun Associates, Inc. (OTO) | $46,874




Given that OTO provided the lowest cost proposal to complete the BERA while also
offering to evaluate the most “lines of evidence,” CRRA Environmental Department
personnel forwarded OTO’s proposed scope of work to CT-DEP on March 3, 2011 for
review and comment. On March 15, 2011, CRRA and OTO met with CT-DEP to discuss
CT-DEP’s questions and comments on the proposed scope of work. During this meeting,
CT-DEP recommended the following revisions to OTO’s proposed scope of work:
e Perform groundwater modeling/dilution analysis in lieu of benthic invertebrate
sampling and surface water sampling in the Quinnipiac River;
¢ Re-allocate a number of the proposed Quinnipiac River sediment samples to the
Quinnipiac River floodplain (closer to the landfill) and the wetlands on the former
Barberino property;
e Conduct surface water aquatic toxicity testing (one sample) of an unnamed
tributary to the Quinnipiac River from the former Barberino property;
e Add three potential ecological receptors to the food web model; and,
e Extend the vertical profile of sediment samples to a depth of 24” below grade in
sampling locations where elevated metals concentrations are encountered, if any.

Based on the revised scope of work, OTO provided CRRA with a revised cost estimate of
$48,773 to complete the BERA. This revised cost estimate represents an increase of
$1,899 over OTO’s original cost estimate. OTO’s revised cost estimate is still the lowest
of the three proposals received by CRRA, while also offering to evaluate the most “lines
of evidence.” CRRA management recommends that an RFS to complete the Wallingford
Landfill BERA be executed with O’Reilly, Talbot & Okun Associates, Inc. (OTO).

In addition to the BERA Scope of Work, OTO’s proposal also included an optional task
to prepare a RAP, if necessary. OTO’s proposed cost for preparation of the RAP was
$5,000. CRRA management also recommends that the RFS include the optional task of
preparing a RAP for an additional $5,000, if preparation of a RAP is determined to be
necessary. Including the optional task of preparing a RAP, the total value of the RFS to
be executed would be $53,773.

Financial Summary

Funds for this expenditure will come from the Wallingford Landfill Post-Closure
Reserve.  This ecological risk assessment activity was contemplated when the
Wallingford Landfill post-closure cost estimate was developed, and there are adequate
funds in the post-closure reserve account to cover this expense.




